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Welcome to the Township

Our Vision

The Township of Esquimalt is a vibrant,
distinct and diverse community for
people to discover and belong.

Our Mission

The Township of Esquimalt works to
make our economic, cultural, social
and environmental community a better
place for today and for the future.

Our Core Values

Accountability—We are transparent and take
responsibility for our policies, our decisions and our
actions.

Integrity—We practice high standards of ethical
behaviour and open communication that inspires trust.

Respect—We value people and treat everyone with
dignity and fairness.

Service excellence—We meet community needs
and achieve high-quality results through teamwork,
partnerships, innovation and creativity.

Passion—We approach our work with conviction and
enthusiasm.
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Esquimalt 2023

éé We anticipate an
exhilarating year ahead
in Esquimalt, dedicated
to enriching the vitality
and essence of our
community.

-Mayor Barbara Desjardins
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About Us

Esquimalt (pronounced Ess-KWY-malt) is an anglicized
version of the lak¥anan word “es-whoymalth,” which
means the place of gradually shoaling waters.

Year of incorporation: September 1, 1912. +  Esquimalt has over 40 hectares of
parkland, many of these parks overlooking
waterways along the Strait of Juan de Fuca
and the Gorge Waterway.

The area now known as Esquimalt has been
inhabited by Coast Salish First Nations for
over 4,000 years.

The Township enjoys over 30 parks,

Esquimalt boasts a diverse business beaches and green spaces

landscape, from a bustling graving dock
and light industrial enterprises to offices to
breweries and a variety of local businesses.

@ Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report

The Township is home to close to 18,000
residents.
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Mayor’s Message

On behalf of Esquimalt Council, | am proud to share our 2023 highlights.

Beginning 2023 with a fantastic New Year’s Day levée Nature Walk was the beginning of a new
tradition. It highlights Councils’ Priorities of “Climate Resilience & Environmental Stewardship”
and contributes to an “Engaged & Heathy Community”. Mayor and Council develop and
identify key projects and initiatives to be undertaken during their term of Council for 2023 -
2026.

Esquimalt is renowned for and will continue to support its vibrant community events. Last
year was no exception as our beloved outdoor activities and celebrations flourished.
Buccaneer Days proved to be one of the most successful in memory, while Music in the Park
kept us dancing, Bard Across the Bridge entertained us, and Petapalooza delighted visitors.
Additionally, Esquimalt proudly hosted the annual culinary event RibFest and also welcomed
back the Victoria International Jazzfest to Bullen Field, adding to our rich tapestry of annual
events.

However, amidst these remarkable events, significant efforts were also directed towards
rezoning and development permits, contributing to the expansion of the Township’s housing
inventory. Low-carbon initiative discussions were had at the Council table and progress

is being made in implementing the Township’s Active Transportation Network Plan. The
Integrated Parking Management Strategy saw further public input, and infrastructure
improvements, like a new sidewalk in the Archie Browning Parking lot, enhanced safety and
accessibility.

Traffic calming, pedestrian improvements and protected bike lanes were completed, and
engagement on speed limit reductions to lower speed limits on Major Roads to 40km/hr
and all other roads to 30km/hr was also a priority. Development of an overall Sewer Asset
Management Plan initiated and progressed with completion expected in 2024.

Planning and design were done for the Lyall Street corridor and active transportation
improvements were finalized on the Tillicum and Lampson corridors following public
engagement and outreach. These design plans included traffic calming, additional crosswalk
improvements, furn lanes, widening of sidewalks and cycling improvements.

A major project in our Parks and Recreation department occurred in 2023 as well. The
50-year-old boilers at the Esquimalt Recreation Centre were replaced. These boilers are the
central source of heat for the entire facility including all swimming pools and domestic hot
water. The new boilers are modulating high efficiency condensing natural gas units that will
reduce greenhouse emissions through improved efficiencies.

We anticipate an exhilarating year ahead in Esquimalt, dedicated to enriching the vitality and

essence of our community.

Barbara Desjardins
Mayor
Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report @
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Message from the
CAO

Thank you for reading the Township’s Annual Report for 2023.

One of the most challenging duties of a Council is to make choices about what

to try and achieve within a 4-year term. Without a good way to create focus,
municipal teams try to deliver results across too broad a range of new initiatives
while struggling fo meet the community’s day-to-day needs. With limited time and
resources, these Councils and their staffs work hard but often end up falling short of
community expectations. Here in Esquimalt, Council has set clear and ambitious yet
achievable targets for their term. This focussed direction is captured in the list of
projects and initiatives in the Council Priorities Plan for 2023-2026. Staff have been
working diligently on these priorities and | am happy to note that this annual report
already lists several completed projects and initiatives from the Council Priorities
Plan. A mid-term refresh for Council’s priorities is set to begin shortly, allowing
Council fo assess progress at this important waypoint and provide direction for the
second half of their term. We're already excited about the way forward and what
we will be able to get done in 2024 and beyond!

It is an absolute pleasure to be part of the tfeam here in the Township of Esquimalt.
| can speak for the whole tfeam when | say that we look forward to continuing our
work to support this community with energy, dedication and gusto.

Dan Horan
Chief Administrative Officer

@ Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Organizational Chart

Director of Emergency
Community Safety Program Manager

Services Blair Kulpreet Munde
McDonald

Fire Chief /
= SteVe Serbic (Jan-Sept)
Matt Furlot (Dec) \ Assistant Chief
Greg Swan

Manager of Parks
Robbie Young

e Manager of Recreation
\ Services Jeff Byron

Manager of Facilities
Dan Henderson

Assistant Chief
Neal Widdifield

Director of
| il Parks and Recreation
Steve Knoke

Manager of Public

Director of Works Ken Gawryluk
Chief Engineering and
Mayor and Administrative Public Works Manager of
Council Officer Joel Clary Shefnsering

Dan Horan Charles Davie

Manager of
Occupational Health &
Safety Jack Lees

Director of Human
Resources & Community
Relations Vicki Gannon

Manager of
Communications
Tara Zajac

Manager of
Economic Development

2023 saw a change in the organizational Terése Finegan

structure in key areas.

A new department—Human Resources
and Community Relations—was formed.
Some responsibilities were shifted from
Corporate Services and some existing
duties were formalized with the addition

Director of
Corporate Services
Deb Hopkins

Deputy Corporate Officer
Sarah Holloway

. Director of Manager of Development
of new staff, specifically the Manager of Development Services salesisek
Economic Development and the Manager Bill Brown James Davison

of Occupational Health and Safety.

A new position was added to the Parks and

Recreation leadership team: Manager of Manager of

ep S pe Information Technology
Facilities. The responsibility of facilities Director of Artur Bittencourt
was previously part of the Parks Manager | lendfi' Services

ey an irvine
position. Manager of

Financial Services
These changes were made to add staff Alison Melville

capacity in growing areas.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Mayor Barbara Desjardins

Appointments
Capital Regional District Board/
Hospital Board
Capital Region Housing
Corporation
Capital Regional District Core
Liquid Waste Management Board

Capital Regional District
Environmental Services Committee

Capital Regional District
Governance Committee

Capital Regional District First
Nations Relations Committee
Capital Regional District Planning
and Protective Services Committee

Meet your Council

Capital Regional District
Transportation Committee

Victoria and Esquimalt Police
Board (Co-Chair)

Island Corridor Foundation
Local Government Designated
Representative

Greater Victoria Harbour
Authority Board

Department of National Defence
Liaison

Emergency Executive Committee
School Ligison (Alternate)
Township Community Arts Council

The Mayor and Council of the Township of Esquimalt were elected for a four-year termin
October 2022. Mayor and Council adopt bylaws and policies, approve the municipal budget,
and serve on various committees within the municipality and region.

TOP: Councillors Tim Morrison, Jacob Helliwell, Ken Armour and Andrea Boardman.

BOTTOM: Councillor Darlene Rotchford, Mayor Barbara Desjardins and Councillor Duncan Cavens.
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Esquimalt Council

Ken Armour - Councillor

Appointments

+ Capital Regional District Board / Hospital Board
(Alternate)

+ Capital Regional District Housing Trust Fund
Commission

+ Capital Region Housing Corporation (Alternate)
+ South Island Prosperity Partnership
« Te’'mexw Treaty Advisory Committee

« Victoria/ Esquimalt Harbour Society

+ Advisory Planning Commission Design Review
Committee Liaison

+ Local Grant Committee

Andrea Boardman - Councillor

Appointments

* Capital Regional District Arts
Commission (Alternate)

+ Capital Region Emergency Service
* Telecommunications (C.R.E.S.T.)

* (Alternate)

* Greater Victoria Labour Relations
* Association

* Advisory Planning Commission Liaison

* Environment, Parks and Recreation Duncan Cavens - Councillor
Advisory Committee (Alternate)

* Esquimalt Ribfest Liaison
. Local Grant Committee + Capital Regional District Arts Commission

Appointments

+ Capital Regional Climate Action Inter-Municipal Task Force

+ Capital Regional District Regional Water Supply Commission
(Alternate)

*+ Municipal Insurance Association of B.C. AGM (Alternate Member
Representative)

+ Greater Victoria Public Library Board
+ South Island Prosperity Partnership (Alternate)
+ Te’'mexw Treaty Advisory Committee (Alternate)

+ Environment, Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee
(Alternate)

+ Esquimalt Community Arts Hub Liaison
+ ETAG Liaison (Esquimalt Together Against Graffiti)
+ School Liaison

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘m
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Darlene Rotchford - Councillor
Appointments
+ Destination Greater Victoria

+ Greater Victoria Harbour
Authority AGM (Alternate Member
Representative)

* Victoria Family Court And Youth
Justice Committee

+ Advisory Planning Commission
Design Review Committee Liaison

+ Environment, Parks and
Recreation Advisory Committee
Liaison

+ Esquimalt Farmers Market
) . . Society Liaison
Tim Morrison - Councillor

Appointments

+ Capital Region Emergency Service
Telecommunications (C.R.E.S.T.)

Jacob Helliwell - Councillor + Capital Regional District Regional Water

Appointments Supply Commission

. Greater Victoria Harbour + Greater Victoria Labour Relations

Authority AGM (Member Association (Alternate)

Representative) * Municipal Insurance Association of
British Columbia AGM (Alternate Member
Representative)

* Municipal Insurance
Association of British

Columbia AGM Member + Advisory Planning Commission (APC)
Representative Liaison
* Buccaneer Days Liaison + Celebration of Lights Committee Liaison

« Environment, Parks and
Recreation Advisory
Committee Liaison

+ Local Grant Committee

©
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Community Safety Services

The department aims to strengthen community safety through a focused and
coordinated approach that improves the quality of life for all residents.

BUSINESS LICENCING

The Township monitors and controls the types
of businesses that are allowed to operate
within the municipality. This is done through
the business licence program. Prior to issuing
a business licence, the application is reviewed
by the Development Services Department to
ensure it meets the zoning for the intended
location. The application is then reviewed

by Esquimalt Fire Rescue to ensure that the
building is suitable for its intended use from

a fire safety perspective. Finally building
inspection staff ensure that the structure,
signage and building construction are suitable
for the intended business use. Once all

checks are satisfactory, the business licence
officer reviews and approves the licence if
appropriate.

Highlights

The Township issued or renewed 786 business
licences in 2023 remaining similar to the 762
completed in 2022.

BYLAW ENFORCEMENT

Esquimalt Bylaw Enforcement monitors

and enforces municipal bylaws and takes a
proactive approach to encouraging voluntary
compliance through public education and
awareness of municipal regulations. We are
also responsible for animal management and

the administration of our contract with Victoria

Animal Control Services.

Highlights

As part of the deer study, deer boosters and
final immunocontraception treatments were

completed. Analysis of the data began and will
continue into 2024 as the project was extended

to March 2025.

BUILDING INSPECTION

Building Inspection is responsible for the
regulation of construction, alteration, repair
or demolition of buildings and structures
within the Township and helps ensure

the safety and integrity of buildings and
structures. Building Inspectors conduct
inspections at various stages of construction
and keep records on file for future reference.

Highlights

The Township issued 256 building permits in
2023 reflecting a slight increase from 218 in
2022.

PUBLIC SAFETY
BUILDING PROJECT

The original concept for the Public Safety
Building (PSB) was determined to be too costly
after a tendering process was completed.
Council considered options and directed staff
to move forward with design and construction
of a scaled down version of the PSB containing
the Fire Department and the Emergency
Operations Centre for the municipality on the
southern half of the lot.

Construction for the new building will occur
between summer 2024 and fall 2026.

lllustrative rendering of the revamped PSB design.

®
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EMERGENCY PROGRAM

The Esquimalt Emergency Program manages overall emergency
planning for the Township and is comprised of municipal staff
members, protection services, and volunteers.

The program is responsible for training, public education,
activating the municipal Emergency Operations Centre and liaising
with federal, provincial and regional emergency management
partners. The program also coordinates and maintains the
Emergency Response and Recovery plans for the Township, which
includes business continuity, and updates the plans annually with input
from staff members.

Volunteers are a vital component of the program with the delivery of
public education through the Neighbourhood Emergency Preparedness
Program. The Emergency Social Services team helps to coordinate
essential services for residents that are displaced from their homes and
the Emergency Radio Communications (ERC) Team provides back up
communications when they are needed most.

One of the program’s ESS volunteers at a public outreach event.

Highlights:

For the annual ShakeOut BC drill, the Neighbourhood Emergency
Preparedness Program (NEPP) held a demonstration for four classes from
Macaulay Elementary School. The students observed the Drop, Cover and Hold On lesson as
well as how to exit a room safely after a quake;

Videos were created to support visual and auditory learners in support of online preparedness
information. These videos are short in length but contain pertinent information in a variety of
preparedness topics. These include putting an emergency kit together, identifying hazards in the
community and pet preparedness;

Emergency Social Services (ESS) responded to a level two ESS event. An ESS Reception Centre was
opened for two and a half days to support 17 displaced residents from an apartment building that
was impacted by a construction issue next door;

Staff co-hosted a full-day regional ESS workshop with the Oak Bay Emergency program focussing
on the new Evacuee Registration and Assistance (ERA) Tool. Participants from six other regional
teams attended and the feedback is being used to improve regional cooperation and use of ERA,;

Program staff completed an Emergency Operations Centre (EOC) exercise that involved thirty staff
members that practiced the setup of an EOC in council chambers, building situational awareness and
completing one operational period;

Program staff participated in regional discussions around heat response including roles and
responsibilities at different levels of government;

The Township chairs the regional Emergency Support Services Directors (ESSD) and is an active
member and participant in the Local Government Emergency Program Advisory Commission
(LGEPAC) and Regional Emergency Management Partnership (REMP).

®

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Corporate Services

The Corporate Services Department is comprised of legislative
services, information and privacy management services, archives
services, corporate administration services to Council and staff,
and executive assistance to the Mayor and Chief Administrative
Officer (CAO).

The department is led by the Director of Corporate Services / Corporate
Officer, and includes the Deputy Corporate Officer, Archivist, Executive
Assistant to the Mayor and CAO, Records, Information and Privacy
Coordinator and Corporate Services Assistant.

The department is primarily responsible for providing corporate
administration services including legislative and procedural advice to the
corporation including Mayor and Council, Council meeting management and
production of agendas and minutes, oversight of Council’s committees, Mayor
and CAO support, records management direction, information and privacy
compliance leadership, cooperation and liaison with other governmental
agencies, publication of statutory public notices, as well as ensuring that
council priorities and direction are tracked and implemented. The department
is also responsible for archives, which preserves and makes available municipal
and community records of enduring value and private-sector materials of
historical significance.

The Corporate Services team provides complex customer service, guidance on
public participation and Council proceedings, internal and external direction on
legislative processes and requirements, records management advice, historical
records research assistance, leadership support to the Township’s statutory
duties under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, and
administration of election and assent voting proceedings.
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CORPORATE SERVICES

Highlights

Focused on team building and staff training
after organizational restructuring resulted

in the separation of the Corporate Services
Department from the Human Resources and
Community Relations Department;

Formed Accessibility Committee working in
partnership with Westshore municipalities and
commenced initiatives to comply with new
legislation intfroduced through the Accessible
British Columbia Act to work towards
becoming a barrier free municipality;

Facilitated development and implementation
of the Council Code of Conduct Policy in
accordance with legislative changes to the
Community Charter;

Initiated and completed corporate digital
Agreements and Contracts project; and

Supported additional new Council orientation
and onboarding activities.

The Esquimalt Archives
initiated a community-
based invitation

for new archival
submissions as part of
B.C. Heritage Week.

®

ARCHIVES

Highlights

Participated in B.C. Heritage Week in
partnership with the Greater Victoria
Public Library Esquimalt Branch;

Completed aninventory of subject
reference files including newspaper
clippings, documents, and photographs
on many Esquimalt community related
subjects;

Attended Fort Macaulay Interpretive event
and hosted an information and display
booth; and

Received 18 donations of archival material.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Development Services

The Development Services Department is responsible for
ensuring that community development within Esquimalt occurs
in a manner consistent with the goals and policies set out in the
Official Community Plan (OCP). The department administers
Freedom of Information legislation related to building plans and
provides information to other levels of government.

The Development Services Department is tasked with ensuring that various
planning applications (Official Community Plan Amendments, Zoning

Bylaw Amendments, Development Permit Applications, and Development
Variance Permit Applications) are processed in a efficient and timely manner
in accordance with the Local Government Act and various bylaws. The
department also approves subdivisions while following provincial acts and
regulations. In addition to operational responsibilities, the department is also
tasked with several council priorities relating to housing and climate resilience.

Development Services processes various planning applications to help maintain
consistent application of the OCP.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘H
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After areview, staff updated the Construction
Protocol and posted it on the tfownship
website;

In August, the Committee of the Whole
received an update on the Parking Strategy
and updated Parking Bylaw from the hired
consultant. Updates based on the discussion
have been made and the revised bylaw will be
presented to Council in the second period of
2024;

Staff worked on the development of a web-
based dashboard which allows the public to
easily access census data for Esquimalt along
with data from other sources;

The Tenant Assistance Policy outlines the
circumstances when a developer needs to
provide tenant assistance to tenants who will
be displaced due to redevelopment; the policy
was approved by Council on October 30, 2023
and posted on the Township’s website;

Staff began the process of drafting an
amendment to the Zoning Bylaw to conform
to the new legislation for Small Scale Multi-
Unit Housing;

Staff discussed the development capacity
study at the October 23, 2023, Committee

of the Whole. The Committee made several
suggested changes which will be incorporated
info a revised project charter for Council’s
review in 2024;

@

COUNCIL PRIORITY HIGHLIGHTS

Staff prepared a series of amendments to the
Development Fees and Procedures Bylaw that
included the delegation of minor variances
and delegation of up to six dwelling units per
lot. This will reduce bureaucracy and speed up
approvals;

Sign Bylaw Amendments: Amendments to
the Sign Bylaw were adopted on July 17,
2023. The most significant amendment was
that signs will no longer require development
permits which will speed up approvals and
remove an administrative burden from staff;

Held a Priority Development Workshop
(Climate Resilience and Environmental
Stewardship) in August and allowed Council
and staff to discuss priorities from the Climate
Action Plan. Staff performed preliminary
planning to develop concrete action plan to
reduce corporate greenhouse gas emissions
by 45 per cent from 2070 levels to 2030;

As aresult of a Climate Action Workshop
Initiative, Council report templates were
updated to include climate action (mitigation
and adaptation) considerations; and

Low Carbon Energy Systems Bylaw: Council
amended the Building Regulation Bylaw to
incorporate the Zero Carbon Step Code.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Engineering & Public Works

The Engineering and Public Works Department maintains, upgrades
and develops municipal infrastructure.

Engineering focuses on the planning, design and project management of new
infrastructure and upgrading existing infrastructure along with proposed new
developments. Public Works ensures that the existing infrastructure is maintained
and operated in an effective manner as well as providing additions or improvements
to existing infrastructure. The infrastructure falls into three main groups: linear
(roads, sidewalks, sewers, drains), vertical (building maintenance, signage,
intersections, streetlights) and mobile (purchase and maintenance of vehicles).

COUNCIL PRIORITY PROJECTS & OPERATIONAL BENCHMARKS

Continued implementation of the Active
Transportation Network Plan

Pedestrian facilities

A new sidewalk in the Archie Browning Sports
Centre parking lot with pedestrian friendly
driveway improvements on Lyall Street;

Traffic calming and pedestrian improvements on
Lyall Street from Lampson to the east, including
5 Rapid Rectangular Flashing Beacon (RRFB)
crosswalks that flash when activated making
user more visible;

Portions of a new sidewalk on Munro Street

between Plaskett Place and Kinver Street: New protected bike facilities and signal upgrades on

Lampson Street near Old Esquimalt Rd./ Head St.
7 new RRFB crosswalks installed or underway on
the Tillicum and Lampson corridor; and

Asphalt sidewalk replaced with a wider concrete
sidewalk on Head Street between Dunsmuir
Road and Wollaston Street.

Cycling facilities

Protected bike lanes installed or underway on
the Tillicum and Lampson corridor.

Lowering speeds

Traffic calming improvements at various
locations using temporary materials; and

New Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB)

Engagement completed on speed limit .
crosswalk on Lyall St. at Paradise St.

reductions to lower speed limits on Major Roads
to 40km/hr and all over roads to 30km/hr.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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COUNCIL PRIORITY PROJECTS & OPERATIONAL BENCHMARKS

Installed new 250m sewer connection to
service the bathroom at Saxe Point Park;

Replaced 60m of sewer main in a right-
of-way between two houses in Saxe Point
neighbourhood;

Started and advanced the development
of an overall Sewer Asset Management
Plan;

Parking bylaw public engagement opportunities were promoted

Presented Draft Integrated Parking
through several Township channels.

Management Strategy and completed
public engagement ;

Continued to manage contractor completing CCTV inspections of storm and sewer
main;

Presented Integrated Resource Management business case to Council;

Replaced B.C. Hydro pole with a new signal pole at the northwest corner of the
Admirals Road and Esquimalt Road intersection;

Replaced 141 high pressure sodium streetlights with LED lights;
Replaced 49 failed LED streetlights under warranty with new LED lights;

Prepared an update Subdivision and Development Bylaw that was approved by
Council;

Repaired the Nelson Street walkway at the south end of Nelson Street that suffered
fire damage in 2022;

Replaced the overhead crane in the Public Works Yard;

Installed a fire control system at the Public Works Yard;

Replaced decorative poles in median islands on Esquimalt Road with new poles;
Replaced 35m of a deteriorating drain main on Lampson Street;

Completed 764 Calls for Service;

Replaced significant portions of the lower roofs at Municipal Hall; and

Initiated design to replace the fuel tanks at the Public Works Yard.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Financial Services

The Financial Services and Information Technology
Departments are responsible for management of the
Township’s financial affairs and technology requirements to
ensure public accountability and transparency while supporting
Council’s strategic objectives.

The Financial Services Department serves as the first point of contact

at the municipal hall. In addition to addressing all general enquiries, the

department is responsible for overall cash management. This includes

collection of property tax, dog and business licence payments, investment of

funds and securities, management of payroll and benefits and processing of
—— disburse made by the Township.

Additionally, to ensure.the Township is protected against the effects of
damage on accidental loss, staff maintain claims and insurance premiums
and work closely with other artments to ensure that risks to the Township
are minimized. Each year, a detailed budget identifies all revenues and
funding sources for operating and ¢apital expenditures, including projections
for a five-year period. This financial plan and the annual taxation levies
necessary to support the service levels of municipal operations are approved
by Council.

Additionally, the Township’s reserves are assessed to ensure long term fiscal
sustainability and adequacy of funding for future capital projects. The
Township’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB)

recommendations, are audited annually. “

|
In addition to satisfying all audit and regulatory reporting requirements,

the department generates timely and accurate financial information for
review and analysis by Council and senior management to ensure fiscal
accountability and facilitate decision-making.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘E
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Highlights

Implemented the electronic
receipt of property tax
notices and the ability to
make tax payments using
credit cards;

Presented triannual
variance analysis
reporting for department
operations and capital
projects;

Negotiated a
Memorandum of
Understanding with the
School District regarding
the provision of school
crossing guards;

Developed a Business Fagade
Improvement Program to
promote business revitalization;

Developed an updated Purchasing
and Disposal Bylaw;

Provided analysis regarding long-term
financial planning including infrastructure renewal
and replacement;

Developed an updated local grants policy and process;

Designed and implemented an automated employee onboarding and offboarding
process;

Implemented an organization-wide cybersecurity awareness training program;
and

Implemented audio visual and wireless capabilities at the Gorge Pavilion.

The Esquimalt Gorge Pavilion has been a popular venue for
meetings, celebrations and events since opening in 2022.

@ Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Fire Rescue Services

Esquimalt Fire Rescue Services (EFRS) provides fire suppression, investigation,
prevention, and education services to residents of Esquimalt. Other services the
department provides include medical first responder, confined space entry and

hazardous materials response.

EFRS actively engaged with the community throughout 2023, fostering partnerships and

delivering valuable educational programs.

YOUTH PROGRAMS

In March, EFRS organized a successful School
Fire Academy in collaboration with School
District 61, providing Esquimalt High School
students with hands-on experience in fire
department activities.

This initiative not only offered valuable insights
but also awarded students’ academic credit
and a first-aid certificate.

Additionally, EFRS participated in a career fair
hosted by School Districts 61 and 62 at Archie
Browning, showcasing the path to becoming

a professional firefighter to parents and
students.

STAFFING

The addition of four new full-time employees
bolstered EFRS’s ranks, contributing to
operational efficiency and reducing overtime
costs. The appointment of a new Fire Chief in
December signaled a continued commitment
to firefighter safety, wellness, and community
safety.

2023 Annual Report

@

PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Crews underwent comprehensive training
sessions to enhance their skills and
preparedness. Notable highlights include
participation in the Fireground Survival course
and acceptance into the Technical High Angle
Rope Rescue Program (THARRP) through the
B.C. Construction Safety Alliance.

Additionally, crews engaged in regular
maintenance training, attended live fire
training sessions and fulfilled legislative training
requirements to ensure readiness for any
situation.

MUTUAL AID/ TRAINING

Collaboration with external agencies
strengthened EFRS’s capabilities. Crews
participated in joint exercises with Department
of National Defense Fire Crews and visited

the BC Hydro substation for valuable insights.
Additionally, EFRS deployed a team to combat
wildfires in the Okanagan, demonstrating
dedication and professionalism in emergency
response efforts.
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Esquimalt Fire Rescue Services is made up of one Fire Chief, two Assistant Fire Chiefs, 28 full-time firefighters, and one
administrative staff member.

FIRE PREVENTION HEALTH AND WELLNESS

EFRS remained dedicated to fire prevention EFRS prioritized the well-being of its firefighters,
efforts, intensifying their awareness campaign implementing initiatives to support their physical
on the importance of smoke alarms throughout and mental health. Clinical counselors provided

the community. support to all shifts, while crews received training

in mental health first aid and recovery topics.
Participation in the IAFF Peer Support Program
further equipped staff with skills to assist
members struggling with mental health issues.
Efforts to enhance the department’s wellness
app continued, providing crucial support to
members in crisis situations.

The implementation of APX, a new online
web-based inspection, pre-planning, and
response software, significantly enhanced
their capabilities in managing and conducting
inspections, further reinforcing their
commitment to fire prevention.
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Community Relations

The Human Resources and Community Relations department was formed in March
2023. Responsibilities previously housed in Corporate Services, including human
resources and communications, were moved to this department.

The HR and Community Relations Department is comprised of human resources, occupational health
and safety, communications, economic development, business licences, Indigenous relations and other
events including volunteer attraction and recognition. The department supports internal and external
communications, and provides HR, labour relations and occupational health and safety advice to staff.

In July 2023 the Township established a management position specific to economic development,
with responsibility for leading initiatives to attract businesses to the areaq, stimulate investment, and
enhance residents’ overall quality of life. In August, 2023 a dedicated occupational health and safety
division was established, marking a significant milestone in safeguarding the well-being of Township
employees.

The department is led by the Director of HR and Community Relations, and includes the Manager of
Communications, Manager of Economic Development, Manager of Occupational Health and Safety,
and administrative support.

COMMUNICATIONS

This section supports corporate priorities as a whole in
addition to individual departments in areas such as
community engagement, media relations, website
and social media administration, branding and
emergency communications.

Staff regularly work with volunteer groups to
help raise the profile of community events and
volunteer opportunities. Communications is
also responsible for the design and distribution
of the corporate annual report, promotional
advertisements and community newsletters.

Highlights

Coordinated media training for Council and senior
staff;

Updated Media Relations Policy;

Managed brand refresh project resulting in new brand
guideline documents, templates for staff, font and Communications supports public information like

corporate colour palette; and the popular walking tour brochures.

Hired consultants to create new website. Project to end
in early 2024.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report @
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OCCUPATIONAL

HEALTH & SAFETY

In 2023, the Township of Esquimalt
initiated the year by engaging committees
to address occupational health and
safety matters. A dedicated Occupational
Health and Safety (OHS) division was
established in August 2023.

The Occupational Health and Safety Staff receiving a tour of SeaSpan as part of business
Manager plays a vital role in this outreach activities.
endeavor, overseeing and enhancing

workplace safety within the Township of ECONOM |C DEVELOPM ENT

Esquimalt. Economic development is aimed at improving the
Their responsibilities include developing economic weII—b'ei.n.g 9“0' prosperity Of{] community.
and implementing comprehensive safety It often involves initiatives to attract businesses, create
policies and programs, conducting risk jobs, stimulate investment, and enhance residents’
assessments, and ensuring compliance overall quality of life. Economic development supports

the Township’s vision of becoming a vibrant, unique,

with regulatory standards. Leading
and inclusive community where people can find

incident investigations, identifying root

causes, and implementing preventative belonging and opportunities to thrive.

measures are also integral parts of

their role. Additionally, they spearhead Highlights

employee training initiatives, foster +  The Manager of Economic Development assumed
safety awareness, and collaborate with office in July 2023.

stakeholders to promote best practices.
The 2023-2025 Economic Development Action

Highlights: Plan was endorsed by Council in October 2023.
Implemented a progressive Stay At +  AnRFQ for the Place branding/Community
Work/Recover at Work Program to Branding Project was awarded in December 2023.

facilitate the reintegration of injured
or illemployees into the workplace;

HUMAN RESOURCES

Facilitated the procurement of 3

Automated External Defibrillators The team provides HR services including recruitment,
(AEDs) for new departments to labour relations, staff training & organizational
enhance safety; development.

Completed Confined Space Alternate Highlights

Measures, enabling compliant access

to critical water infrastructure; Focused on team building and staff training with

the development of a new department, with two
Developed Fall Protection plans for new staff members;
the municipal hall roof, incorporating
non-penetrating counterweight roof
anchors; and

Provided Indigenous Awareness Training for all staff;

Developed and implemented an Employee

Conducted first aid training for an Recognition program;

additional 18 employees. Implemented a modified work week program to

provide more flexibility for staff; and

Updated the long service award program to include
auxiliary and part time staff, and 21 employees
were recognized for their service.

O,
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Parks & Recreation Services

Esquimalt is a compact community with a wealth of parks and recreation
opportunities maintained and operated by the Parks and Recreation Department.
The department provides programs and services for local and regional residents and
hosts sporting and special events in the community.

The recreation department offers a wide variety of programs that serve the community by providing
options for all ages and abilities. From athletics to arts to peer support, Esquimalt Recreation’s goal is
to be a place for everyone.

The parks department is responsible for the maintenance and conservation of Esquimalt’s stunning
parks, trails and beaches. While maintaining Township parks to a high standard, staff members follow
principles of sustainability and ecology, ensuring that future generations will continue to enjoy our
coastal and upland parks and greenways.

Highlights
Activities offered through partnership + Inthe fall of 2023, the pool returned to full, pre-
programs with other municipalities covid operating hours (119 hours per week);

continue to include Leisure Involvement For
Everyone (L.I.F.E), Leisure Assistance Pass
(L.A.P.), and the Regional Access Pass;

Four additional garden beds were added to the
Anderson Park Community Gardens, including
an accessible bed;

Promotions occurred through the website,
digital signage, roadside marquee,
and engaged in social media platforms

Infield safety upgrades were completed at
Lampson Park Lions Baseball Diamond;

(followers on parks/rec accounts: 6,985 - Educational signage was installed along the

on Facebook; 4,252 on Twitter; 2,395 on newly completed Salt Marsh project at Gorge

Instagram); Park. These signs include information about
migratory birds, salt marsh habitats and forage

The Gorge Park Pavilion had 629 bookings fish:
in 2023, including 25 weddings; '

Irrigation was installed in the event field at
Memorial Park and the rhododendron garden

in Esquimalt Gorge Park;

The Recreation Centre boilers, which had
a fifty-year service life, were replaced
in the fall of 2023. The new boilers are

modulating high efficiency condensing +  Forty volunteers planted 550 native plants and
natural gas units that will reduce trees in the areas on either side of the dog park
greenhouse emissions through improved in Esquimalt Gorge Park; and
efficiency;
A Branch Out Invasive Removal
2023 saw the return of the Fitness event was held in the spring
Department’s 60 Day Challenge, after a at Macaulay Point Park in
two-year hiatus; collaboration with the

Greater Victoria Green
Team, to clear 188 sq
metres of invasive plants
that were threatening
the native biodiversity
of the park.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘a

The Aquatics Department won the
Lifesaving Society award for most Bronze-
level courses run in a community under
20,000;
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Community events play a large part of the Township’s identity and local spirit. Several
events are organized through the Parks and Recreation department while some are
led by volunteers or community organizations. In any case, when events are held on
Township property, staff provide a range of services, from logistical support to
promotion.

Local grants often include a request for in-kind donation of staff
support for events.

Hosted or supported signature Esquimalt

community events including the Esquimalt 5km

Walk & Run, Buccaneer Days, JazzFest, RibFest,

the Music in the Park series, the Esquimalt Farmers
Market, Celebration of Lights, Bard Across the Bridge,
Sculpture Splash—Sandcastle Edition at Esquimalt
Gorge Park, Story Fest, and the Fire Hall Halloween
Spooktacular brought participants and spectators
from across the region;

The Gorge Park Pavilion hosted the Champagne and
Cake Show (pictured right) on February 28. This wedding
showcase saw over 400 people attend;

The Gorge Park Pavilion hosted the annual TCAC
Sculpture Splash, with 28 Vancouver Island-based
sculptors showing over 100 pieces of art;

Climate Canvas: A Community Art Project offered by the
Resilience by Design Lab with support of Royal Roads and
University of Victoria. This art and youth-focused event
was held at the Gorge Pavilion;

2023 saw high profile TV and movie filming in our parks
including two Hallmark movies filmed at Saxe Point Park,
as well as Amazon Prime Series: Reginald the Vampire at
Esquimalt Gorge Park; and

+ A new summertime weekly children’s event called
“Stories in the Park” was created and averaged
15 participants per week at different parks
throughout the Township.

The aquatics facility remains a popular asset for the
Parks and Recreation department.
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VicPD: Esquimalt Division

The dedicated police officers of the Esquimalt Division are committed to the
residents and business community in the Township of Esquimalt. Their mission
is to “deliver excellence in public safety for two diverse communities through
engagement, prevention, innovative policing, and the Framework Agreement.”

The Victoria Police Department’s Esquimalt Division provides policing services to the Township of
Esquimalt and the community of Vic West. Based in the heart of the Township, the Esquimalt Division
is home to dedicated police officers, support staff, and shared policing services. Our Community
Resource Officers pride themselves on their ability to effectively respond to community challenges
through collaboration with citizens, community partners, members of the business community, and
local government. Our Traffic Section, also based in Esquimalt, conducts proactive traffic safety
initiatives focussing on education and enforcement. The members and staff are committed to a style
of service delivery that is rooted in community policing, high visibility and connections with our citizens.

2023 was a busy and productive year for the members of the Esquimalt Division. The staff continues
to provide prompt, courteous, and kinetic service to the community.

Highlights:

Ongoing relationships with our business
community through the ‘Connect’ project;

Enhanced efforts to deliver traffic safety to
the Township, particularly in school zones
and key intersections;

Deployment of ‘speed-reader’ boards at
key locations in the community;

Maintained lockdown procedures and
assisted with drills in our local schools to
promote student & staff safety;

Providing CPTED advice and infrastructure
security procedures for key locations that
are important to our residents; and

Assisted with various initiatives with local
service providers and community partners

including Moosehide, ‘No Stone left Alone’, Buccaneer Days 2023 with Inspector Mike Brown and
the Poppy Campaign, Meals on Wheels, Devon Warwick - one of VicPD’s most senior Reserve
and Esquimalt Lions Christmas Hampers. Constables.

To curb rising gang recruitment in Greater Victoria schools, the municipal police agencies in the CRD
collaborated on and delivered several ‘anti-gang’ presentations.

The presentations are designed to educate and inform local parents and to provide strategies to help
insulate their children from this concerning trend. Presenters included major crime detectives, analysis &
intelligence experts, MYST and former school liaison officers.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘a
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2023 Snapshots

Esquimalt Archives volunteers.

Volunteer Sherri Robinson at Fort Macaulay’s annual event.

Staff made custom planters to add visual interest to new traffic
calming measures.

Fire Academy students learning auto extrication skills.

Esquimalt Fire Rescue members deployed to West Kelowna

during the Okanagan Lake fires.
Esquimalt Parks and Recreation staff at the annual 5K race.
Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report
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Council Priorities

Council priorities outline areas of focus for the current term. These priorities can be
amended over time as some are completed and other needs arise.
These priorities are in addition to existing operational tasks and approved capital projects.

The projects or initiatives in this plan fall outside of staff’s day-to-day operational or service
level commitments.

The complete list of the 2023-2026 Council Priorities are included as Appendix A.

Council priorities completed in 2023:

CLIMATE RESILIENCE & ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

Project Department Status Details Completion
. Parks and
Tree Protection Bylaw Update . Complete Q12023
Recreation
Priority Pevelopmen’r Workshgp—Chmc’re Resilience Devglopmen’r Complete Q22023
and Environmental Stewardship Services
Climate Action Workshop Initiative: Update Council Corporate
report templates to include climate action (mitigation s P Complete Q32023
and adaptation) considerations ervices
Development
Low Carbon Energy Systems Bylaw Services Complete Q32023
Green Teams Partnership Parks czr'md Complete Q32023
Recreation
Project Dept Status Details Completion

Complete; endorsed

HR and by Council, projects &
Develop Economic Development Action Plan Community initiatives to be inserted | Q32023
Relations into staff work plans
and budget 2024

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘i
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The Council Priorities Plan represents Council’s direction to staff; staff use this guidance to
build their workplans and deliver the results that Council is seeking. While Council retains
the flexibility to modify or update the Priorities Plan at any time, the aim of a structured
framework is to establish a predictable rhythm for governance review of Council’s priorities

throughout the year.

Council priorities completed in 2023:

GOOD GOVERNANCE & ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Project Department Status Details Completion
. Corporate Complete; annual review
Council Code of Conduct Services completed in Q1 2024 Q22023
Sign Bylaw Amendments sDengopmenf Complete Q32023
ervices
Staff repqr’r—B.C. Grjowmg Communities Devglopmen’r Complete Q2 2023
Fund Options Analysis Services
Complete; Council directed
Long Term Financial Planning Update - In- | Financial staff to provide Asset Man- Q4 2023

frastructure Asset Management Strategy

Servicesand IT

agement Strategy update in
2024.

HOUSING

Department

Status Details

Completion

Project

Development

Services

Construction Protocol Review - Complete Q12023
Services

Priority Development Workshop—Housing Eeer\ilei::oezmem Complete Q22023

Rent Bank Program Information Brief Eevglopmen’r Complete Q22023
ervices

GIS Census Analysis g):r\:/eklzzzmen’r Complete Q32023

Tenant Relocation Policy DEvE @il Complete Q4 2023

Project

Status Details

Completion

Options Analysis - Arm Street Park Dock

Parks and
Recreation

Complete; recommending new
initiative to explore dock op-
tions throughout Township

Q42023

O,
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By the numbers

CORPORATE SERVICES

69 agendas, notices and minutes prepared for
Council, Committee of the Whole, and In Camera
meetings.

27 Freedom of Information request responses
132 Archives requests for research and information
28 proclamations prepared and posted to website

244 actionable resolutions voted on at Council and
Committee of the Whole meetings

1,940 mail items processed for retention and
distribution

68 new resident welcome packages delivered

COMMUNITY SAFETY SERVICES

829 business licences issued or renewed
145 new business licence applications
153 plumbing permits issued

256 building permits issued (just under $97M in
construction value)

660 bylaw enforcement tickets issued

221 written warnings issued

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

11 Rezoning Applications

15 Development Permit Applications
11 Development Variance Applications
2 Temporary Use Permit Applications
3 Liquor Licence Applications

6 Board of Variance Applications

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report @

HUMAN RESOURCES &
COMMUNITY RELATIONS
Regular full time staff: 141

Regular part time staff: 19
Esquimalt Alert subscribers 3,065
Twitter: 4147

Facebook: 2,987

Instagram: 1,927

42 OHS Policies and Safe Work Procedures were
created or updated

11 safety inspections and audits were conducted

36 Joint Occupational Health and Safety
Meetings were held

14 safety training sessions conducted
42 local/regional partnership engagements

30 workshops/business events attended.

FINANCIAL SERVICES &
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

5,810 paper property tax notices generated
271 electronic property tax notices generated
587 property tax certificates

1,687 dog licences issued

6,014 vendor invoices processed

6 Legal Document Applications

1 Subdivision Applications

9 Advisory Planning Commission meetings
7 Design Review Committee meetings

4 Board of Variance meetings

9 Public Hearings



FIRE RESCUE SERVICES

Total number of Responses: 973
Residential Structure Fires: 9
Commercial Structure Fires: 5
Brush Fires: 7

Vehicle Fires: 4

Other Miscellaneous Fires: 32
Motor Vehicle Accidents: 33
HazMat Incidents: 2

Medical Emergencies: 582

Inspections: 633

PARKS & RECREATION

6,057 memberships sold

2,808 punch passes sold

136 children enrolled in school year before and

after care programs

117 youth, on average, attending the Esquimalt

Teen Centre each week.

2,474 children enrolled in summer camps

1,495 children enrolled in swimming lessons

574 parks bookings

167 tree cutting/pruning application were

processed with permits

46 municipal trees were removed

127 municipal trees were planted in natural

areds

69 boulevard trees were planted

446 cubic metres of invasive species were

removed from parks

DRAFT

ENGINEERING & PUBLIC WORKS
432 tonnes of asphalt placed

800 linear metres of sidewalks maintained

6 sanitary service lateral installed

16 blocked sanitary service laterals repaired
9 storm service laterals installed

7 blocked storm service lateral repaired

15 catchbasins installed

6 traffic orders issued

48 development applications commented on
111 building permit applications commented on
Collection of:

» 1,006 tonnes of garbage

» 554 tonnes of kitchen scraps

» 2,002 tonnes of yard and garden

®

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report



DRAFT
Climate Action Reporting

New for 2023

Council provided direction to staff in 2023 to start incorporating
annual climate action progress reporting into the annual plan.

Plan highlights \

A detailed summary of 2023 climate action
activities is included in this report. The activities \
are demonstrated in relation to the Climate |
Action Plan objectives specified for 2023 or as
ongoing objectives. |

/
\ ‘ Esquimalt Council adopted the BC Energy Step Code, and the new Zer /Carbon

Step Code with an accelerated timeline for implementation.

Starting January 1, 2024, new houses, duplexes, townhouses will have near zeyo
carbon emissions in their operation. This will be achieved primarily with electric
heat pumps. Besides being a very cost-efficient means of heating, heat pumps

provide a co-benefit of cooling living spaces in hot weather.

Staff completed the provincial LGCAP Sorvey

Qualifies Esquimalt for funding support from the Provincial Local
—_Government Climate ég/jgn%/ogrom (LGCAP), to reduce emissions and
prepare the-community for the impacts of climate change.

‘ Two new high-efficiency boilers at the Regional cooperation
Recreation Centre
. . Continued working with CRD on water-saving
Replacing the 50-year-old boilers, the new programs (Fix a Leak Week), energy-saving

boilers will reduce GHG usage. rebates (Home Navigator Program), grants

for an EV charging network and the “Hot Topc”
report to better understand the impacts of
heat waves on the local population including
vulnerable communities.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report @



Staff are tracking and publicly disclosing the GHG emissions from four
municipal buildings. Benchmarking emissions allows building owners
to consider the GHG emissions from their buildings in relation to other
buildings of similar size, age, and usage.

. LED replacement program
Replaced 141 High-Pressure Sodium (HPS) streetlights with LEDs

to reduce municipal energy use.

Maintaining the urban forest through development permits

Continued to encourage developers to keep existing trees and plant new
trees, particularly native tree species, through the Development Permit
process.

’ Active Transportation Network projects

2 kms of new bike lanes

12 Rapid Rectangular Flashing Beacon (RRFB) crosswalks that flash when activated
making user more visible

Sidewalk enhancements along Lampson-Tillicum corridor, Lyall Street , Munro Street
and Head street

Water saving

Converted irrigation controls to Bluetooth in all parks,
islands and gardens allowing for efficient water use
specific to conditions.

. Staff engagement

A successful Go By Bike Week staff team
yielded a total team distance of 1,966 KM
and 426 KG of greenhouse gases saved.
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Financial Statements

Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt

Year ended December 31, 2023

Management’s Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report
Financial Statements

Statistical Information

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘i



DRAFT

Management’s responsibility for financial
statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt (the "Township")
are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in compliance with applicable legislation, and
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments as recommended by
the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of
the significant accounting policies are described in note 1 to the financial statements. The preparation of
financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's judgement,

particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty
until future periods.

The Township's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by management.

Mayor and Council meet with management and the external auditor to review the financial statements and

discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to Council's acceptance of the
financial statements.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external auditor appointed by the

Township. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of
their examination and their opinion on the Township's financial statements,

I WY} 1y \\Mb '

Chief Administrative Officer Director of Financial Services
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Auditor’s Report to the Mayor and Councillors of the
Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report @
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Auditor’s Report to the Mayor and Councillors of the
Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt
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Auditor’s Report to the Mayor and Councillors of the
Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt
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Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2023 2022
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 90,213,759 § 80,600,629
Property taxes receivable 1,179,554 1,306,035
Accounts receivable 2,090,195 1,092,058
MFA debt reserve cash (note 12(b)) 498,679 534,730

93,982,187 83,503,452

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 3) 13,547,293 9,343,221
Deferred revenue and deposits {note 4) 8,290,778 T.072,489
Debt (note 5) 34,723,886 36,353,110
Employee benefit and retirement obligations (note 6) 1,600,169 1,458,370
58,162,126 54,227,190
Net financial assets 35,820,061 29,366,262
Non-financial assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 7) 105,770,772 100,015,312
Inventory of supplies 201,306 178,508
Prepaid expenses 178,621 174,247

106,150,699 100,368,067
Commitments and contingencies (note 12)

Accumulated surplus (note 8) $ 141,970,760 § 129,734,329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

e

Director of Financial Services
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Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Financial plan 2023 2022
(note 13)
Revenues:
Taxes for municipal purposes (note %) $ 21,317,955 § 21,295424 § 19,555,729
Payments in place of taxes (note 10) 13,168,008 13,263,765 12,852,521
Sale of services 4,017,818 4,574,013 4,275,962
Capital contributions & donations - 248,455 337,604
Other revenue from own sources 2,941,286 8,715,080 9,762,059
Conditional transfers from other governments (note 11) 3,289,143 7,396,255 1,262,038
Unconditional transfers from other governments (note 11) 560,000 529,000 579,533
Total revenue 45,294,300 56,021,992 48,625,446
Expenses:
General government 5,321,666 5,535,714 5,618,059
Protective services 16,671,208 18,086,054 15,390,431
Transportation 4,398,139 4955221 4,979,445
Environmental health 1,403,999 1.864,858 1,823,507
Environmental development 1,090,365 1,096,921 810,476
Recreation, parks and culture 10,905,136 12,246,793 11,381,289
Total expenses 39,790,513 43,785,561 40,003,207
Annual surplus 5,503,787 12,236,431 8,622,239
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 129,734,329 129,734,329 121,112,090

Accumulated surplus, end of year

$ 135238116 % 141,970,760 § 129,734,329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Financial plan 2023 2022
(note 13)
Annual surplus $ 5503787 § 12236431 % 8,622,239
Contributed tangible capital assets - (248,455) (315,231)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (55,232,021) (9,880,056) (6,949, 788)
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 4,011,589 3,627,665
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 1,047,240 30,923
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets - (685,778) 774,361
(55,232,021) (5,755,460) (2,832,070)
Acquisition of inventory supplies - (201,306) (178,508}
Consumption of inventory supplies - 178,508 146,845
Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (178,621} (174,247)
Consumption of prepaid expenses - 174,247 159,135
- (27,172) (46,775)
Change in net financial assets (debt) (49,728,234) 6,453,799 5,743,394
Net financial assets, beginning of year 29,366,262 29,366,262 23,622,868

Net financial assets, end of year

5 (20,361,972) § 35,820,061

$ 29,366,262

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

@
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2023 2022
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 12236431 § 8,622,239
Items not involving cash:
Contributed tangible capital assets (248,455) (315,231)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 4,011,589 3,627,665
Change in employee benefits and other liabilities 141,799 78,130
Actuarial adjustment on debt (351,659) (512,959)
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets (685,778) 774,361
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities:
Property taxes receivable 126,481 (506,313)
Accounts receivable (998,137) (78,321)
MFA debt reserve fund cash 36,051 64,262
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,204,072 (1,993,210)
Deferred revenue and deposits 1,218,289 (2,602,259)
Inventory of supplies (22,798) (31,663)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (4.374) (15,112)
19,663,511 7,111,589
Capital activities:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (9,880,056)  (6,949,788)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,047,240 30,923

(8,832,816) (6,918,865)
Financing activities:
Debt issued - 98,761
Debt principal repaid (1,277,565) (1,373,425)
(1,277,565)  (1,274,664)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

9,553,130

80,660,629

(1,081,940)

81,742,569

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

§ 90,213,739

80,660,629

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash received from interest

1,206,857
4,708,340

1,228,240
2,244,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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The Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt (the "Township") was incorporated on September 1, 1912
under the Municipal Act, a statute of the Province of British Columbia. Its principal activities are the
provisions of local government services to residents of the incorporated area. These include administrative,
protective, transportation, environmental, recreational, water, sewer and fiscal services.

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Township are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards for governments as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting
Board ("PSAB") of The Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Township are as follows:

{a) Reporting entity:

The financial statements include a combination of all the assets, liabilities, accumulated surplus,
revenues and expenses of all of the Township’s activities and funds. Inter-departmental balances and
organizational transactions have been eliminated. The Township does not control any significant
external entities and accordingly, no entities have been consolidated in these financial statements,

(b) Basis of accounting:

The Township follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are
normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized
as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and/or the creation of a
legal obligation to pay.

(c) Government transfers:

Government transfers with stipulations are recognized as revenue in the period the transfer is
authorized and all eligibility criteria have been met except when and to the extent the transfer gives
rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability for the recipient government.

Government transfers without stipulations restricting their use are recognized in the financial
statements as revenue in the period in which the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria are
met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.

(d) Deferred revenue:

Deferred revenue includes grants, contributions and other amounts received from third parties
pursuant to legislation, regulation and agreement which may only be used in certain programs, in the
completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets. In addition, certain user
charges and fees are collected for which the related services have vyet to be performed. Revenue is
recognized in the period when the related expenditures are incurred, services performed, or the
tangible capital assets are acquired thereby extinguishing the related liability.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(e) Property tax revenue:

Property tax revenue is recognized on the accrual basis using the approved mill rates and the
anticipated assessment related to the current year.

(f) Investment income:

Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. When required by the funding
government or related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the investment
and forms part of the deferred revenue balance,

(g) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in the Municipal Finance Authority of British
Columbia (the “MFA™) Money Market Funds which are recorded at cost plus eamnings reinvested in
the funds.

(h) Long-term debt:
Long-term debt is reported net of related payments and actuarial earnings.

(i) Employee future benefits:

The Township and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. These
contributions are expensed as incurred.

Sick leave benefits and other retirement benefits are also available to the Township's employees. The
costs of these benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement
ages and expected future salary and wage increases. The obligations under these benefit plans are
accrued based on projected benefits as the employees render services necessary to earn the future
benefits. The actuarial losses or gains are amortized over a period equal to the employee's average
remaining service lifetime.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘=



DRAFT

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31,2023

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(j) Financial Instruments:

Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, property taxes
receivables, MFA debt reserve cash, accounts payables and accrued liabilities and debt.

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Derivative instruments and
equity instruments that are quoted in an active market are reported at fair value. All other financial
instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost unless management has elected to
carry the instruments at fair value. Management has not elected to carry any other financial
instruments at fair value,

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses
until they are realized, when they are transferred to the Statement of Operations and Accumulated
Surplus. There are no unrealized changes in fair value as at December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022, As a result, the Township does not have a Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses.

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently at fair
value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs
incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are amortized using the straight-line method or
effective interest rate method.

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is determined to
be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is reported in the Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surplus and any unrealized gain is adjusted through the Statement of Remeasurement
Gains and Losses. When the asset is sold, the unrealized gains and losses previously recognized in the
Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses are reversed and recognized in the Statement of
Operations and Accumulated Surplus.

Long-term debt is recorded net of repayments and actuarial adjustments.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report



DRAFT

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31,2023

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(k) Mon-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended
for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

{i) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly attributable
to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual
value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life in years
Land improvements 10 - 50
Building and building improvements 5-70
WVehicles, machinery and equipment 3-30
Water and wastewater infrastructure 20 - 100
Roads mfrastructure 15 - 80

Amortization is charged annually, including in the year of acquisition and disposal. Assets under
construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use. Tangible capital
assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the Township's
ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future economic benefits associated
with the asset are less than the book value of the asset.

(ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions including tangible capital assets received in lieu

of a developer cost charge, are recorded at fair value at the date of receipt and also are recorded
as revenue.

{1i1) Works of art and cultural and historic assets

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these financial
statements.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(k) Non-financial assets (continued):
(iv) Interest capitalization

The Township does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction of
a tangible capital asset.

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are accounted for as
operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as incurred.

(vi) Inventories of supplies

Inventories of supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement
cost.

(I} Asset retirement obligation:

An asset retirement obligation is recognized when, as at the financial reporting date, all of the
following criteria are met:

- There is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset;
- The past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred;

- It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and

- A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability for the removal of asbestos in buildings owned by the Township has been recognized
based on estimated future expenses on closure of the sites and post-closure care. Under the
prospective method, the discount rate and assumptions used on initial recognition are those as of the
date of adoption of the standard. Assumptions used in the subsequent calculations are revised yearly.

The liability is discounted using a present value calculation and adjusted yearly for accretion expense.
The recognition of a liability resulted in an accompanying increase to the respective tangible capital
assets. The capital assets affected by the asbestos liability are being amortized following the
amortization accounting policies outlined in 1{j)(1) above.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(m) Liability for contaminated sites:

The Township records a liability in its financial statements when contamination on non-active
property exceeds an accepted environmental standard and the Township is directly responsible, or
accepts responsibility, for the damage. The liability is measured at the Township's best estimate of the
costs directly attributable to remediation of the contamination.

No contaminated sites liabilities have been recorded in these financial statements.
(n) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Estimates include
assumptions used in estimating useful lives of tangible capital assets and estimating provisions for
accrued liabilities including employee future benefits. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

(o) Change in accounting policies

On January 1, 2023, the Township adopted Public Acounting Standards PS 3450 - Financials
Instruments and PS 2601 - Foreign Currency Translation . The standards were adopted
prospectively from the date of adoption. The new standards provide comprehensive requirements for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments and foreign
currency transactions.

Mo adjustments to these statements were made as a result of adoption of these two standards.

On January 1, 2023, the Township also adopted Public Accounting Standard PS 3280 — Asset
Retirement Obligations . The new accounting standard addresses the reporting of legal obligations
associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets, such as asbestos removal in retired
buildings by public sector entities. The new accounting standard has resulted in a withdrawal of the
existing Section PS 3270 — Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liability . The standard
was adopted on the prospective basis at the date of adoption.

In accordance with the provisions of this new standard, the Township reflected the following
increases at January 1 , 2023 to the following asset and liability accounts:

- Building and building improvements - $70,509
- Accounts payable and acerued liabilities - $70,509
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2. Cash and cash equivalents:

2023 2022

Cash and bank deposits $ 2,922,011 % 2,870,250
Municipal Finance Authority Money Market Funds 87,291,748 77,790,379
$ 90,213,759 § 80,660,629

3. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities includes the following asset retirement obligation established in 2023:

Asset Retirement Obligation 2023
Balance, December 31, 2022 3 -

Establishment of asset retirement obligation 70,509
Accretion expense 3,370
Balance, December 31, 2023 73 879
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4. Deferred revenue and deposits:

Deferred revenue, reported on the statement of financial position, includes the following:

2023 2022
Trust and deposit liabilities £ 4684971 § 4078917
Unearned recreation fees 461,895 382,186
Property tax instalments 1,351,829 1,324,963
McLoughlin Amenity grants - 226,401
Miscellaneous 1,792,082 1,060,022

$ 8290777 $ 7,072,489
5. Debt:
Repayments
Original and Actuarial Net Balance
Bylaw Purpose Matures Rate Amount Earnings 2023 2022
General Capital
2492 Recreation Centre  2023/10/03 2.850% $ 2,800,000 § 2,800,000 § - § 182452
2834 Roads and Streets  2024/10/14  3.000% 1,200,000 1,066,758 133,242 271,174
3021 Public Safety 2051/09/27 2.580% 35,000,000 1,687,415 33,312,585 34,165,666
39,000,000 5,554,173 33,445,827 34,619,292
Sewer Capital
2565 Sanitary Sewers 2027/12/01 3.900% 2,353,000 1,730,908 622,092 766,227
2565 Sanitary Sewers 2026/10/19 1.530% 1,129,000 905,631 223369 294.930
2565 Sanitary Sewers 2025/10/13 0.910% 2,012,000 1,750,890 261,110 392,192
2565 Sanitary Sewers 2024/12/02 2.250% 1,256,000 1,164,610 91,390 183,155
6,750,000 5,552,039 1,197,961 1,636,504

General Capital Short Term
LUA-Nov 21/22 Recreation Centre  2027/11/30 5.610% 98,761 18,663 80,098 97314

98,761 18,663 80,008 97,314

$45 848,761 $11,124 875 §34,723,886 1§ 36,353,110
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5. Debt (continued):

In 2002, the Council of the Township adopted Bylaw No. 2492 to authorize the renovation and upgrade of
the Esquimalt Recreation Centre and to borrow upon the credit of the Township a sum not to exceed
$6,800,000.

In 2003, the Council of the Township adopted Bylaw No. 2565 to authorize the construction of

improvernents to the sanitary sewer system and to borrow upon the credit of the Township a sum not to
exceed 56,750,000,

In 2014, the Council of the Township adopted Bylaw No. 2834 to authorize the construction of
improvements to the Admirals Road corridor and to borrow upon the credit of the Township a sum not to
exceed $1,200,000.

In 2021, the Council of the Township adopted Bylaw No. 3021 to authorize the construction of a new public
safety building and to borrow upon the credit of the Township a sum not to exceed $35,000,000.

In 2022, the Council of the Township authorized the replacement of aging fitness equipment and to borrow
short term upon the credit of the Township a sum not to exceed $98,761.

Total interest on debt for the year was $1,159,636, including accrued interest of $259,926 (2022 -
$1,220,303, including accrued interest of $279,384).

The Township issues its debt instruments through the MFA. The debt is issued on a sinking fund basis,
whereby MFA invests the Township’s principal payments so that the payments, plus investment income, will
equal the original outstanding debt amount at the end of the repayment period. Actuarial earnings on debt
represent the repayment and/or forgiveness of debt by the MFA using surplus investment income generated
by the principal payments.

Principal payments on debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2024 5 1,193,527
2025 1,056,634
2026 975,733
2027 941,192
2028 829477
Thereafter 19,077,971
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6. Employee benefit and retirement obligations:

The Township provides sick leave and certain benefits to its employees. These amounts and other employee
related liabilities that require funding in future periods are set out below.

Accumulated sick leave represents the liability for sick leave banks accumulated for estimated draw downs at
future dates. Retirement benefit payments represent the Township's share of the cost to provide employees
with various benefits upon retirement including lump sum retirement payments, death benefits, certain
vacation entitlements in the year of retirement, and pension buyback arrangements for qualified employees.

Information about liabilities for employee benefit plans is as follows:

2023 2022
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year b 1,458,370 § 1,380,240
Service cost 133,500 150,500
Interest cost 71,300 47,200
Benefits payments (93,9007 (170,100}
Past agreement refund accrual 30,499 50,530
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 3 1,600,169 § 1,458,370

The actuarially accrued benefit obligation set out in the actuarial valuation is $1,679,000 (2022 -
$1,483,200), resulting in a variance of $78,831 between the obligation and the accrued benefit Lability of
$1,600,169 (2022 - $1,458,370). The variance is composed of an actuarial net loss of 5136,300 (2022 -
$69,700) and the special agreement refund accrual of $57,469 (2022 - $44,870). This actuarial loss is being
amortized over a period equal to the employees' average remaining service lifetime of 11 years. The total
expense recorded in the financial statements in respect of obligations under this plan amounts to $223,100
(2022 - $242,400).

The accrued benefit obligations and the net periodic benefit cost were estimated by actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2022, At December 31, 2023, the valuation was updated to reflect specific changes in the
assumptions adopted in measuring the Township's accrued employee benefit obligations. The significant
assumptions adopted in measuring the Township’s accrued benefit obligations are as follows:

2023 2022

Discount rates 4.10% 4.50%

Expected inflation rate 3.00% 4.00%
Expected wage and salary increase, based on

age and gender 0.00% - 3.40% 0.00% - 3.40%
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6. Employee benefit and retirement obligations (continued):
Municipal Pension Plan

The Township and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension plan).
The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the plan,
including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2022, the plan has about
240,000 active members and approximately 124,000 retired members. Active members include
approximately 43,000 contributors from local governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and
adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member
contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age normal
cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions sufficient to provide
benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may be adjusted for the amortization of any
actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated a
$3,761 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The Township paid $1,411,870 (2022 - $1,226,234) for employer contributions while employees contributed
$1,215,366 (2022 - $1,063,583) to the plan in fiscal 2023,

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2024, with results available in 2025,

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions
made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records
accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis
for allocating the obligation, assets, and cost to the individual employers participating in the plan.

GVLRA - CUPE Long-Term Disability Trust

The Trust was established January 1, 1987 as a result of negotiations between the Greater Victoria Labour
Relations Association representing a number of employers and the Canadian Union of Public Employee
locals. The Trust’s sole purpose is to provide a long-term disability income benefit plan. The Township and
its employees each contribute equal amounts into the Trust. The total plan provision for approved and
unreported claims was actuarially determined as of December 31, 2020 and extrapolated to December 31,
2022. At December 31, 2022, the total plan provision for approved and unreported claims was $25,808,500
with a net deficit of $3,026,543. The actuary does not attribute portions of the unfunded liability to
individual employers. The Township paid $86,906 (2022 - $74,135) for employer contributions in fiscal
2023.
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7. Tangible capital assets:

Township of Esquimalt

Balance Balance
December 31, Disposals/ December 31,
Cost 2022 Additions transfers 2023
Land and land improvements £ 47216353 % 166,257 § (151,988) $ 47,230,622
Building and building
improvements 36,837,201 5,922,595 (9,902) 42,749 894
Vehicles, machinery and
equipment 13,205,397 707,155 (291,172) 13,621,380
Water and wastewater
infrastructure 27,338,800 723711 (4,964) 28,057,547
Roads infrastructure 43,202,257 1,736,157 (320,335) 44,618,079
Work in progress 8,818,912 6,566,611 (5,693,975) 0,691,548
Total 5 176,618,920 % 15822486 $§ (6,472,336) § 185,969,070
Balance Balance
December 31, Amortization December 31,
Accumulated amortization 2022 Disposals expense 2023
Land and land improvements 5 12,321962 § (18,666) § 418,350 % 12,721.646
Building and building
Improvements 14,918,569 (1,782) 1,297,818 16,214,605
Wehicles, machinery and
equipment 8,727,309 (276,414) 636,564 9,087,459
Water and wastewater
infrastructure 14,473,242 (4,961) 423,996 14,892,277
Roads infrastructure 26,162,526 (115.076) 1,234,861 27282311
Total 3 76603608 3 (416,899) $ 4,011,589 § 80,198,298
Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
Met book value 2022 2023
Land and land improvements $ 34,894,391 § 34,508,976
Building and building
Improvements 21,918,632 26,535,280
Vehicles, machinery and
equipment 4,478,088 4,533,921
Water and wastewater
infrastructure 12,865,558 13,165,270
Roads infrastructure 17,039,731 17,335,768
Work in progress B,R18912 9,691,548
Total $ 100015312 § 105,770,772
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7. Tangible capital assets (continued):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Assets under construction

Assets under construction having a value of $9,691,548 (2022 - $8,818,912) have not been
amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is available for service.

Contributed tangible capital assets

Contributed tangible capital assets are recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution.
There were contributed tangible capital assets having a value of $248,455 during the year (2022 -
$315,231).

Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized ata
nominal value. Land is the only category to which nominal values were assigned.

Works of art and historical treasures
The Township manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical cultural

assets including buildings, artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at Township sites and public
display areas. These assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are not amortized.

Write-down of tangible capital assets

There were no write-downs of tangible capital assets during the year (2022 - $nil).

Asset retirement obligation

Included in the building and building improvements additions is $70,509 representing the original

estimate of the asbestos remediation obligations at January 1, 2023. Accumulated amortization
relating to the additions was $3,426.
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8. Accumulated surplus:

Accumulated surplus includes unappropriated operating funds and various appropriated operating

accounts and reserve funds.

2023 2022
Surplus:
Equity in tangible capital assets A 71,046,886 § 63,662,202
Unappropriated operating funds 49,516,015 48,304,779
120,562,901 111,966,981
Appropriated operating funds:
Future expenditures 906,925 911,724
Casino revenue 269,079 129,135
Community Impact Fund 448313 363,365
Community Works Fund 2,273,347 4,720,995
Growing Communities Fund 4,895 432 -
Uncollected taxes 100,000 100,000
Working capital 400,000 400,000
0,293,096 6,625,219
Reserve funds set aside for specific purposes by Council:
Capital Projects 4,788,406 4,541,402
Local Improvement 214,239 199,373
Machinery and Equipment 2,189,142 2,473,172
Municipal Archives Trust 4,595 4396
Parkland Acquisition 1,191,048 127,774
Tax Sale Lands 130,274 124,008
Sustainability 521,299 321,544
Eva Chafe 30,085 28,638
Infrastructure and Revitalization 2,931,956 2,632,769
Public Art 113,719 92,937
McLoughlin Amenity-Public Safety Facilities - 596,116
12,114,763 11,142,129
$ 141,970,760 § 129,734,329

@,
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8. Accumulated surplus (continued):

Information about the Safe Restart Grant, included in unappropriated operating funds, is as follows:

2023 2022
Safe Restart Grant, beginning of vear 1,973,692 2,755,371
Eligible costs incurred:
Revenue shortfalls (46,000) (618,000)
Protective services (428,974) {150,000)
General government (182,818) (13,679)
$ 1,315,900 § 1,973,692
Information about the Growing Communities Fund Grant is as follows:
2023 2022
Growing Communities Fund, beginning of year b - -
Grant received 4,710,000 -
Interest earned 185,432 -
$ 4,895,432 -
9. Taxes:
2023 2022
Taxes for municipal purposes:
Property tax b 21,024,892 19,314,833
Local Improvement 4. 686 4 686
1% Utility tax 265,846 236,210
$ 21,295,424 19,555,729
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9. Taxes (continued):

As well as taxes for its own purposes, the Township is required to collect taxes on behalf of, and transfer
these amounts to, the government agencies noted below. Taxes levied over or under the amounts

requisitioned are recorded as accounts payable or receivable.

2023 2022
Taxes, requisitions and levies collected on behalf of the
following agencies are not included in these statements:
Province of British Columbia - school purposes 7,433,340 $ 6,887,146
Capital Regional District - requisition 3,897,212 3,444 841
Capital Regional District - 9-1-1 call answer levy 52,180 51,864
Capital Regional Hospital District - requisition 854,380 834,165
British Columbia Assessment Authority 251,419 234,198
British Columbia Transit - Victoria Regional Transit
Commission 1,387,305 1,155,999
Municipal Finance Authority 1,349 1,201
13,877,185 § 12,609,414
10. Payments in place of taxes:
2023 2022
Payments in place of taxes received for municipal purposes:
Federal government 13,132,896 § 12,729,013
British Columbia Hydro & Power Authority 127,634 120,608
Provineial Rental Housing Corporation 3,235 2,900
13,263,765 § 12,852,521
Payments in place of taxes collected on behalf of the
following agencies are not included in these statements:
Province of British Columbia - school purposes 2,635,892 § 2,614,064
Capital Regional District 2,337,549 2,187,873
Capital Regional Hospital District 315,201 343,649
British Columbia Assessment Authority 160,753 167,629
British Columbia Transit - Victoria Regional Transit
Commission 781,673 606,944
Municipal Finance Authority 515 497
6,231,583 § 6,010,656

©,
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11. Transfers from other governments:

2023 2022
Conditional transfers from other governments:
Federal 5 1,790,463 § 844,911
Provincial 5,605,792 368,127
Other agencies - 49,000
7,396,255 1,262,038
Unconditional transfers from other governments:
Small communities protection 186,000 247,000
Traffic fine revenue sharing 343 000 332,533
529,000 579,533
Total transfers from other governments b 7.925,255 § 1,841,571
12. Commitments and contingencies:
(a) Contractual commitments:
At December 31, 2023, the following major contracts were in progress:
Total amount Paid on
of contract contract to
December 31,
2023
Ellice Recvcling Ltd. § 023,347 § 893221
Emery Electric Ltd. 66,995 61,479
GeoAdvice Engineering Inc 179,480 27,275
Hazelwood Construction Services Lid, 4,057,083 1,031,798
HCMA Architecture + Design 2,216,965 1,897,300
PerfectMlind Inc. 132,680 79,608
Skyblue Services Corporation 156,800 136,700
Victoria Animal Control Services Lid. 355,950 290,307
Victoria Drain Services Lid. 212,312 199,704
g 8,301,612 $ 4,617,392
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2023

12. Commitments and contingencies (continued):

(b) MFA debt reserve fund deposits:

Under borrowing arrangements with the MFA, the Township is required to lodge security by means
of demand notes and interest-bearing cash deposits based on the amount of the borrowing. As a
condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA as a
debt reserve fund. These deposits totalling $498,679 (2022 - $534,730) are included in the
Township's financial assets as restricted cash and are held by the MFA as security against the
possibility of debt repayment default. At December 31, 2023, there were contingent demand notes
of $771,183 (2022 - $852,373), which are not recorded in the financial statements of the Township.
If the debt is repaid without default, the deposits are refunded to the Township and demand notes
are cancelled.

(c) Capital Regional District (the "District") debt, under a provision of the Local Government Act, is a
direct, joint and several liability of the District and each member municipality within the District,
mcluding the Township.

(d) The Township is a sharcholder and member of the Capital Regional Emergency Service
Telecommunications (CREST) Incorporated whose services provide centralized emergency
communications, and related public safety information services to municipalities, regional districts,
the provincial and federal governments and their agencies, and emergency service organizations
throughout the Greater Victoria region and the Gulf Islands. Members' obligations to share in
funding ongoing operations and any additional costs relating to capital assets are to be contributed
pursuant to a Members' Agreement.

(e) The Township entered into a long-term contract with the City of Victoria and the Victoria and
Esquimalt Police Board (the “Police Board™) effective January 1, 2014 and extending until
December 31, 2023, During the year, a one year contract extension was negotiated to December
31, 2024 with the option of two additional one vear extensions. Under the terms of this contract,
the Township will continue to fund a percentage of the annual police budget. No other conditions
of the initial contract have changed.

{f) In February 2017, the Township entered into agreements with the Capital Regional District related
to the hosting for the Core Area Wastewaster Treatment Facility. These agreements outline the
amenities to be received by the Township, which include annualized payments for the duration of
the facility's useful life, allowances for the restoration of transportation infrastructure and funding to
be used for the purposes of public safety, recreation facility and waterfront park improvements. For
2023, the Township received an annualized payment of $66,588 (2022 - $64,648).
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31,2023

12, Commitments and contingencies (continued):

(g)

(h)

The Township entered into a five year agreement with the City of Surrey effective September 18,
2018. Under the terms of the agreement, the City of Surrey will provide emergency dispatch and
non-emergency atter hour call answering services for the Township. The annual charge to the
Township will be based on actual costs for the calendar year, including any adjustments for changes
in calls for service, labour costs, and inflation costs as determined in the agreement. In 2023, the
Township paid $111,325 (2022 - $107,043).

The Township is a defendant in various lawsuits. An accrual is recorded in respect of legal claims
that are likely to be successful and for which a liability amount is reasonably determinable. The
remaining claims, should they be successful as a result of litigation, will be recorded when a
liability is likely and determinable. The Township is self-insured through membership in the
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia. Under this program, member municipalities
are to share jointly for general liability claims against any member in excess of $10,000. Should the
Association pay out claims in excess of premiums received, it is possible that the Township, along
with the other participants, would be required to contribute towards the deficit.

13. Financial plan data:

The financial plan data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2023 operating and
capital financial plan approved by Council on May 1, 2023. Amortization, a non-cash item, was not
included in the development of the financial plan and, as such, has not been budgeted. The chart below
reconciles the approved financial plan to the financial plan figures reported in these financial statements.

Financial plan amount

Revenues:

Operating budget $ 99,598,605
Less:

Transfer from other funds (19,304,305)

Proceeds from borrowing (35,000,000}
Total revenue 45,294,300
Expenses:

Operating budget 99,598,605
Less:

Capital expenditures (55,232,021)

Transfer to other funds (3,297.340)

Debt principal payments (1,278,231
Total expenses 39.790,513
Annual surplus b 5,503,787
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2023

14. Segmented information:

The Township is a diversified municipal organization that provides a wide range of services to its
citizens. For management reporting purposes, the Township's operations and activities are organized and
reported by service area. Municipal services are provided by departments and their activities are
reported in these service areas. Service areas that have been separately disclosed in the segmented
information, along with the services they provide, are as follows:

(a) General Government:

The general government operations provide the functions of building services and maintenance,
corporate administration, finance, human resources, legislative services and any other functions
categorized as non-departmental.

(b) Protective Services:

Protective services is comprised of four functions, including the Township's community safety and
emergency program services, fire, police and regulatory and development services. The emergency
program services prepare the Township to be more prepared and able to respond to, recover from,
and be aware of the devastating effects of a disaster or major catastrophic event that will impact the
community. The fire department is responsible for providing critical, life-saving services in
preventing or minimizing the loss of life and property from fire and natural or man-made
EMmergencies.

The police services provided by the City of Victoria ensure the safety of the lives and property of
the Township as well as Victoria citizens through the enforcement of municipal bylaws, criminal
laws and the laws of British Columbia, the maintenance of law and order, and the prevention of
crime. The mandate of the regulatory and development services is to promote, facilitate and enforce
general compliance with the provisions of bylaws that pertain to the health, safety and welfare of
the community and to provide a full range of planning services related to zoning, development
permits, variance permits and current regulatory issues.

(¢) Transportation:

Transportation services is responsible for a wide variety of transportation functions such as parking,
engineering operations and street maintenance management, This department provides
infrastructure, traffic control and transportation planning services, as well as providing services
related to infrastructure, land development impacts on transportation, traffic management,
pedestrian and cycling issues and on-street parking regulations.

Township of Esquimalt 2023 Annual Report ‘m
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31,2023

14. Segmented information (continued):

(d) Environmental Health:

Environmental and health services include solid waste services and services related to sanitary and
storm sewer systems. Solid waste services include collection of solid waste, household garbage and
compost. Sanitary and sewer services include the construction and maintenance of the sewer
distribution systems to protect the environment and public health from the impacts of liquid wastes
generated as a result of human occupation and development in the Township.

(e) Environmental Development:

Environmental development works to achieve the Township's community planning goals through
the official community plan, neighbourhood plans, special sector and precinct plans and urban
design and other policy initiatives. The department is also responsible for the heritage program,
downtown vitality and public use of space.

(f) Recreation, Parks and Culture:

Recreation services facilitates the provision of recreation and wellness programs and services
through the Township's pool, arena, community and seniors' centres. The parks department
preserves and enhances green spaces on public lands; and is responsible for the maintenance,
planning and development of all park facilities such as ornamental gardens, natural ecosystems,
sport and entertainment venues and playgrounds for recreational and cultural enjoyment in a
beautiful and safe environment. The cultural department is responsible for co-ordinating and
leading efforts to enhance our neighbourhoods, fostering arts and culture, and working to create a
Township that is vibrant and people-centric.

Certain allocation methodologies have been employed in the preparation of the segmented financial

information. The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the financial statements as disclosed in Note 1.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2023

15. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk:
(a) Credit risk:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss. The Township is exposed to credit risk with respect to the cash and cash
equivalents, property taxes receivable, accounts receivable, and MFA debt reserve cash.

The Township assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable, and property taxes receivable
and provides for any amounts that are not collectible in the allowance for doubtful accounts. The
maximum exposure to credit risk of the Township at December 31, 2023 is the carrying value of
these assets.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable and property taxes receivable is valued with
consideration for an allowance for doubtful accounts. The amount of any related impairment loss is
recognized in the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus. Subsequent recoveries of
impairment losses related to accounts receivable and property taxes receivable are credited to the
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus. The balance of the allowance for doubtful
accounts at December 31, 2023 is $nil (2022 - $nil).

As at December 31, 2023, $270,843 (2022 - $144,326) of trade accounts receivable were past due,
but not impaired.

There have been no significant changes to credit risk exposure from 2022.
(b) Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Township will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely basis
or at a reasonable cost. The Township manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating
requirements. The Township prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient funds to
fulfill its obligations.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are generally due within 30 days of receipt of an invoice.

The contractual maturities of short- and long-term debt are disclosed in note 5.

There have been no significant changes to liquidity risk exposure from 2022,
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31,2023

15. Financial risks and concentration of credit risk (continued):
(c) Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates or interest rates
will affect the Township’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters while optimizing return on investment.

(i) Foreign exchange risk:

Foreign exchange risk arises as a result of exchange rate fluctuations and the volatility of these
rates. The Township does not have any material transactions during the year or financial
instruments denominated in foreign currencies at year end.

There have been no significant changes to the foreign exchange risk exposure from 2022.

(ii) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows or a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates.

There may be interest rate risk on long tenm debt issued by the Municipal Finance Authority as rates
may be reset after the end of the first ten year term, followed by subsequent interest rate resets every
five years thereafter. Interest on short term debt is based on floating interest rates. The Township's
debt 1s disclosed in Note 5.

There has been no change to the interest rate risk exposure from 2022,
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Statistical Information

As per BC Assessment Roll Tax Base Report
Taxable Assessments of Land and Improvements 2019 - 2023

2023 Assessment by Type

Source: BC Assessment

Property Class 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Residential $5.501.772.719 $4.814.540.205 $3.950.163,005 $3.720.860.105 $3,624.061.090
Utilities 1,903,100 1,978,500 2,132,800 1,830,800 1,447,300
Major Industry 66,143,700 66,164,700 45 534,800 34,911,300 52 208,600
Light Industry 32,613,500 29,651,200 16,831,500 16,722,100 15,247 600
Business 336,307,401 322 586,751 301,505,201 245244 151 230,161,901
Recreation Non-Profit 26,218,500 23,807,200 25,349,700 16,568,200 14,894,900

$5.064,058,000 $5258,728.556 $4.341517,006 $4,036,136,656 $3,038,021.301
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Statistical Information
Property Tax Rates 2019 - 2023

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Municipal (5 per 1000 assessment)
Residential 2.89332 3.02397 3.44892 353537 3.53754
Utilities 17.09798 1499631 15.88204 17.89370 19.00219
Major Industry 33.98041 32.42480 32.84677 33.37427 30.81798
Light Industry 7.66420 7.48060 12.74421 12.62558 13.48568
Business & Other 867997 8. 56441 9 05966 1024288 1078225
Recreation/Non-profit 323992 3.05091 3.10554 4 55787 449214
Total ($ per 1000 assessment)
Residential 479518 4 96199 578750 579616 577784
Utilities 3471697 32.23932 34.02803 3595453 3767143
Major Industry 4350888 43.58013 4540142 40.87147 42.02199
Light Industry 1390128 13.79871 20.87882 17.47810 2129920
Business & Other 14 98878 14 94282 16.27736 14 57759 17 92485
Recreation/Non-profit 6.17116 596587 6.46505 6.49655 7.99802
Municipal Tax Billings by Property Class
Residential $15918,389 $14 559,025 $13,623,796 $13,154 617 $12,820,261
Utilities 32,539 29,670 33,873 32,760 27,502
Major Industry 1,819.924 1668930 1,321,043 1165139 1115760
Light Industry 249 956 221,809 213,469 211,126 205624
Business & Other 2919138 2762765 2731535 2512007 2481663
Recreation/Non-profit 84,948 72,634 78,725 75,516 66,910

$21.024.802 $10.314.8633 $18.002.441 $17.151.165 $16.717.720
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Statistical Information
Property Tax Levied and Collected 2019 - 2023

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Municipal 521024892 $19314833 $18002441 § 17151165 $16,717.720
Capital Regional District 3,897 212 3,444 841 3611610 2,920,003 2915704
Province of BC School 7,433,340 6,887,146 6,601,021 5,351,719 5,654,829
Capital Regional Hospital District 854,380 834 165 897 264 891,297 932,246
BC Transit 1,387,305 1,155,999 1,072,552 996,320 909 664
BC Assessment Authority 251,419 234 198 222 351 210,064 190,863
Municipal Finance Authority 1,349 1,201 994 916 887

$34849897 $31872383 $30408233 $ 27521484 $27321913

Total Current Taxes Levied 34,849,897 31,872,383 30,408,233 27,521,484 27,321,913
Current Taxes Collected 34002642 30865402 29,786,935 27279224 26895757
Percentage 97.57% 96.64% 97.96% 99.12% 98.44%

2023 Taxes by Jurisdiction

60%

21%

11%
204 4%

Municipal Capital Regional District Province of BC School Capital Regional BC Transit
Hospital District

Source: Corporafion of the Township of Esquimalt Finance Department
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Debenture Debt 2019 - 2023

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Gross Qutstanding Debt $45 848 761 $49848 761 $50500000 $15500000 $16,050,000
Less: Repayments & Actuarial Earnings 11,106,212 13,494 204 11,609,267 10,588,005 9,613,047
Short-term Debt Payments 18,663 1,447 750,000 450,000 1,000,000
Net Debt $34,723886 $36.353110 $38140,733 $ 4461995 § 5436953
General $33,525925 $34 716606 $36,084,067 $ 2000315 § 2588498
Sewer 1,197,961 1,636,504 2.056_666 2,461,680 2,848 455
$34,723,886 $36,353 110 $38,140,733 $ 4461995 § 5436953
Debt Servicing Costs
Property Tax Supported $ 2300483 $ 2321004 $ 1120536 $ 617180 § 884690
Casina 164,430 275,000 275,000 275,000 275,000
Total Debt Servicing Costs $ 2464963 § 2596004 $ 1395536 $ 892180 § 1,159.690
Population 19,155 19,155 17,533 19,015 18,716
Net Debt per Capita $ 1813 % 1,808 § 2175 % 235 § 290
Debt Servicing per Capita $ 129 % 136§ 80 % 47 8 62
Debt Service as % of Expenditures 5.63% 6.49% 3.87% 2.56% 3.24%
# of Households 8,995 8,995 8,995 8,742 8,742
Gross Debt Servicing Limit $11,851406 $11,837842 $11,277.6881 $10508201 § 9179759
Debt Capacity Available $ 9386443 § 9241838 $ 9882345 $ 9616021 § 8,020,069
Net Debt Per Capita
$2. 500
$2.000
$1,500
$1,000
$500
S— T T T T 1
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Source: Municipal Finance Authority

Source: Population: Statistics Canada Census/CRD Population Growth Estimates
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Statistical Information
Revenue and Expenses 2019 - 2023

Revenue 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Property taxes $ 21295424 § 19555729 18,243,875 17,390,225 16,965,769
Payments in place of taxes 13,263,765 12,852,521 12,853,020 13,258,895 12,746,911
Sale of services 4 574013 4 275962 3,070,167 2 476 588 4,116,933
Capital contributions & donations 248 455 337,604 297 533 2,209 347 30,000
Other revenue from own sources 8,715,080 9,762,059 10,749,689 5,336,330 3,090,663
Unconditional transfers from other governments 529,000 579,533 569,055 603,295 596,366
Conditional transfers from other governments 7,396,255 1,262,038 1,865,005 4 523 650 2,166,871
$ 56021992 § 48625 446 47 678,414 45,798,330 39673.018
Expenses by Function
General government 5 5535714 5 5,618,059 3,970,843 3,693,284 3,894,933
Protective services 18,086,054 15,390,431 14,522 604 14,674 861 13,770,663
Transportation 4,955,221 4,979,445 4,689,341 4,816,496 4974174
Environmental health 1,864,858 1,823,507 1,745,606 1,684,206 1,291,803
Environmental development 1,096,921 810,476 829,611 797 677 853,330
Recreation, parks and culture 12,246,793 11,381,289 10,263,929 9,245,054 10,722,553
$ 43785561 % 40,003,207 36,021,934 34,911,578 35,767 456
Expenses by object
Salary, wages & benefits $ 19727117 $ 18,096,491 16,311,821 15,494,988 16,257,618
Materials, supplies and services 18,859 456 17,056,472 15,710,439 15,631 411 15,596 471
Interest and other 1,187,399 1,222 579 553,035 354,701 360,009
Amaortization 4,011,589 3,627,665 3,446,639 3,430478 3,951,358
$ 43785561 % 40,003,207 36,021,934 34,911,578 35,767,456

Source: Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt Finance Department
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Statistical Information
Reserve Funds and Appropriated and Unappropriated Operating Funds 2019 - 2023

Description 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Reserve Funds
Capital Projects $ 4788406 % 4541402 § 3824590 5 3,436,524 2,845,119
Local Improvement 214 239 199,373 190,919 185,946 179,727
Machinery and Equipment 2,189,142 2473172 2,597,004 2,964 423 2,708,076
Municipal Archives Trust 4 595 4,396 4,321 4215 4104
Parkland Acquisition 1,191,048 127,774 125,343 88,957 88,210
Tax Sale Lands 130,274 124,008 121,647 121,461 120,440
Sustainability 521,299 321,544 179,942 110,399 40,895
Eva Chafe 30,085 28,638 28,093 28,050 27,814
Infrastructure & Revitalization 2,931,956 2,632,769 2,188,391 1,711,160 1,140,097
Public Art 113,719 92,937 77,645 64,825 51,649
McLoughlin Amenity-Waterfront Parks - - 230,435 222740 163,188
McLoughlin Amenity-Recreation Improvements - - 160,161 139,916 116,363
McLoughlin Amenity-Public Safety Facilities - 596,116 168,265 128,838 116,133

12,114,763 11,142,129 9.896,756 9,257 414 7,602,013

Appropriated Operating Funds

Future expenditures 906,925 911,724 812,346 775,955 643,024
Casino revenue 269,079 129,135 104,920 214,852 422 550
Community Works Fund 2,273,347 4,720,995 4,639,047 3,098,613 2,612,863
Library Reserve - - 223,665 433,502 429,860
Community Impact Fund 448 313 363,365 293,028 232,084 171,917
Growing Communities Fund 4,895,432 - - - -

Uncollected taxes 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Working capital 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000

9,293,096 6,625,219 6.575,006 5,255,006 4,780,214

Unappropriated Operating Funds 49,516,015 48,304,779 45,597,619 15,337,038 11,130,551

Total $ 70,923,874 % 66,072,127 % 62,069,581 § 20,849458 % 23512780

Total Reserve Funds, Appropriated and Unappropriated Operating Funds

$80.000,000
$70,000,000 -
$60,000,000 -
$50,000,000 -
$40,000,000 -
$30,000,000 -
$20,000,000 -
$10,000,000 -

% 4

=

2021 2020 2019

2023

Source: Corporation of the Township of Esquimalt Finance Departmeant
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2023 Grants
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View from Saxe Point

THE LAND OF SHOALING WATER

> The area now known as Esquimalt has been
inhabited by Coast Salish First Nations for over
4,000 years.

> Esquimalt (pronounced Ess-KWY-malt) is an
anglicized version of the lek"anan word “es-whoy-
malth,” which means the place of gradually

shoaling waters. The Township
enjoys over 30
> Year of incorporation: September 1, 1912. parks, beaches
and green
> Esquimalt is home to close to 18,000 residents. spaces.

> Esquimalt boasts a diverse business landscape,
from a bustling graving dock and light industrial
enterprises to offices to breweries and a variety of
local businesses.

> Esquimalt has over 40 hectares of parkland, many

of these parks overlooking waterways along the
Strait of Juan de Fuca and the Gorge Waterway.
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West Bay Marina

INTRODUCTION

Goal of the report
Mayor and Council develop and identify key projects and initiatives to be undertaken during the term of Council 2023 — 2026.

The report is intended to outline the priorities and their progress.

What are council priorities

Council priorities outline areas of focus for the coming term. These priorities can be amended over time as some are completed and other needs arise. Any proposed
new projects are evaluated on priority and costs—both financial and in staff time.

These priorities are in addition to existing
operational tasks and approved capital projects.
The projects or initiatives in this plan fall outside
of staff's day-to-day operational or service level
commitments.

Generally, 90 per cent of staff effort is devoted to delivering on service level commitments, which leaves approximately 10 per cent of staff's workplan capacity for
projects that are part of the Council Priorities Plan.

Services

The Township is responsible for delivering essential local services such as parks and recreation; sewer services; transportation infrastructure and fire protection. Land
use planning, economic development and other policy areas impact how the township grows.

These services are part of staff's core service work and are included in the financial plan. Details about this work is summarized in the annual reports.
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Part of the art walk at Esquimalt Town Square

COUNCIL PRIORITY PROCESS

Council was sworn in on November 7, 2022 after time, the aim of a structured framework

the October municipal election. In December of is to establish a predictable rhythm for

that year, they began strategic planning sessions governance review of Council’s priorities

that included identifying areas of focus; drafting throughout the year.

mission, vision and values; and assessing orga-

nizational strengths, weaknesses, threats and These projects may be adjusted to align

opportunities. with financial and departmental planning.
Adjustments to the projects will be reflect-

After a follow-up session, this draft was taken ed in periodic updates of this document.

to the Committee of the Whole for public input

in March 2023. After ratification in April and a
housing workshop in May, Council finalized the list
of priorities and projects.

The Council Priorities Plan represents Council’s
direction to staff; staff use this guidance to build
their workplans and deliver the results that Council
is seeking. While Council retains the flexibility

to modify or update the Priorities Plan at any

(Top) Councillor Morrison, Councillor Helliwell,
Councillor Armour & Councillor Boardman

(Bottom) Councillor Rotchford, Mayor Desjardins &
Councillor Cavens

COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2023-2026 6
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COUNCIL PRIORITY PROCESS.

Financial planning
Staff present a draft budget to Council and the public for feedback and adjustments in the spring. This budget outlines both operational needs and capital projects.

Council takes council priorities into account when approving the budget to ensure initiatives are responsibly funded. The resulting Five-Year Financial Plan provides fund-
ing for core services as well as the Council Priorities Plan. To keep Council, staff and community expectations aligned, it is important to recognize that Council does not
normally add new projects or initiatives to the Council's Priorities Plan without understanding the required funding, staff resources, and impact to current commitments.

The Township has adopted a best practice where new or unfunded projects are referred to the Council Priorities Plan Refresh scheduled to occur each November. Staff
would prepare decision notes for Council consideration that would include information about the potential projects (scope, budget, impact assessment, etc.) to enable
prioritization of the new projects within existing
plans and resources. : : : S :
May: First Period Departmental Reports - updated status of Council Priorities Projects
How do these priorities impact plan-
ning and work throughout the year?
The Chief Administrative Officer and senior lead-
ership group then use these council priorities to
develop operational strategies and work plans to
support the direction set by Council.

June: First Period Financial Report
June: Annual Report - reporting on work completed in the previous calendar year

September: Second Period Departmental Reports - updated status of Council Priorities Projects
The Period Financial Reports share budget
variance updates, including insight on Council
Priorities Projects. Progress is reported to Council
and the public through Department Reports three
times a year and is summarized in the Township's November: Council Priorities Plan Refresh
annual report published each June.

October: Second Period Financial Report

January: Third Period Departmental Reports - updated status of Council Priorities Projects

January-May: Budget Approval Process- new Council Priority Projects are funded & built into staff workplans
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The climbing wall at Fleming Beach.

VISION, MISSION & VALUES

VISION

The Township of Esquimalt is a leader that is recognized as a vibrant, distinct, resilient
and diverse community for people to discover, feel welcome and belong.

MISSION

The Township of Esquimalt works to support economic, cultural, social and
environmental health for our current and future generations.

VALUES

Accountability - We are transparent and take responsibility for our policies, our decisions and our actions.
Integrity - We demonstrate high standards of ethical behaviour and open communication that inspires trust.
Respect - We value people and treat everyone with dignity and fairness.

Service Excellence - We meet community needs and achieve high-quality results through responsiveness, creativity,
teamwork and partnerships.

Passion - We approach our work with conviction and enthusiasm.

Equity, Diversity and Inclusiveness - We share in the responsibility to create a positive culture, honour differences,
and safeguard equity, inclusion and dignity for all.

COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2023-2026 8
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COUNCIL PRIORITIES

CLIMATE RESILIENCE & ENVIRONMEN-
TAL STEWARDSHIP

DIVERSIFIED & THRIVING ECONOMY

ENGAGED & HEALTHY COMMUNITY

GOOD GOVERNANCE &
ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE

HOUSING

STRONG RELATIONSHIPS &
PARTNERSHIPS

Macaulay Park
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PROJECTS & INITIATIVES

CLIMATE RESILIENCE & ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

Project

Department

Status

Status Details

Completion

2. GHG emission municipal building audit
3. GHG corporate roadmap

. Parks and
Tree Protection Bylaw Update Recreation . Complete Q12023
Priority Development Workshop—Climate Resilience and Environmental Stewardship SDeer\:/?Iczgment . Complete Q2 2023
Climate Action Workshop Initiative: Update Council report templates to include climate action Corporate . Complete—new report template Q3 2023
(mitigation and adaptation) considerations Services completed
Climate Action Workshop Initiative: Develop an annual progress report that ties to specific strate- | Development ‘ A new separate section within the annual Q2 2024
gies within the climate plan Services report
Development .
Low Carbon Energy Systems Bylaw Services Complete Q32023
Engineering and Biochar testing plan in development, next
Integrated Resource Management Public Works ‘ return to Council for way ahead decision 232024
: Parks and
Green Teams Partnership Recreation . Complete Q32023
Develop concrete action plan to reduce corporate greenhouse gas emissions by 45% from 2010
levels by 2030 including:
1. Electric vehicle fleet plan Development ‘ Three new sub-projects funded by Q12025
Services Coundil

. Proposed/Not yet funded ‘ On track O Issues or concerns . Project at risk . Complete

COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2023-2026
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PROJECTS & INITIATIVES

DRAFT

DIVERSIFIED & THRIVING ECONOMY

Project Dept Status Status Details Completion
. . HR and Community Complete; endorsed by Council, projects & initiatives to
Dieviehapp Ecerorile Development Ao bler Relations . be inserted into staff work plans and budget 2024 B 2023
Options Analysis - Park Place & Esquimalt Road HR and Community ‘ Preparing a comprehensive ana)ly5|s of options by compil- Q3 2024
Relations ing historical data and current information.
Business Facade Improvement Program Financial Services . Complete Q12024

and IT

. Proposed/Not yet funded ‘ On track O Issues or concerns . Project at risk . Complete




Project

DRAFT
PROJECTS & INITIATIVES

Department

Status

Status Details

Completion

HR and Community

Volunteer Recognition Policy Relations . Complete Q12024
. . iy Community Safety
Police Service Model Transition—Phase | Services . Complete Q2 2024
. . Parks and Complete; recommending new initiative to explore
DS ATl — i Sieel (Rt DEes Recreation . dock options throughout Township D
. Parks and Explore public dock options throughout Township to
Dock Analysis Recreation ‘ provide analysis & provide recommendations to council. Q3 2024
. Financial Services
Macaulay Elementary Crossing Guard MOU and IT . Complete Q12024
Impact Assessment—Report on Undergrounding of Mainline of Overhead Util- | Engineering and
ities (Esquimalt Rd (Constance to Dominion) Public Works . Complete QT 2024
. Engineering and ‘ Exploring options through the Public Art Plan process.
il & Fizplace Esgumali oz arners Public Works Banner update expected late Q3 2024 i Q) 2024
. . Development
Family Doctor Shortage & Incentives Services . Complete Q12024
> Tillicum/Lampson improvements substantially
complete
. . Engineering and ‘ > Munro Sidewalk update: construction underway .
Ialement Acilve Tiemepentiziion Meisvar: Plan Public Works with completion expected in summer 2024 Cngeing
> Reduced speed limits approved by Council with
signs expected to be installed in summer 2024
. - . Community Safety ) ; ;
Public Safety Building—Design Phase Services . Complete- construction starting late Q2 Q2 2024

‘ Proposed/Not yet funded ‘ On track O Issues or concerns . Project at risk . Complete

COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2023-2026
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PROJECTS & INITIATIVES

Project Department Status Details Completion
Revise "Maintenance of Property and Nuisance Bylaw" with respect to Community Safety
Construction Noise Services . Complete Q2 2o
Level of Service Review - Enhance evening and weekend bylaw enforcement ggrr\ll’lirgy;nlty Safety ’ ﬁ;igssed staff capacity and proposing Q4 2024 due Q2 Q4 2024
. Parks and
Implement Public Art Plan Recreation . Complete Q2 2024
Parks and Joint Use Agreement, Business Case and Options
Partner and develop turf field for Esquimalt High School Recreation ‘ Analysis under development. Will go before council Q2 2024
June or July 2024,
Health Needs Assessment SDengopment ‘ Funded via early approvals Q4 2024
ervices
Police service model transition—Phase 2 Community Safety ‘ Further e>.<p|ore Esquimalt Police Department model 18D
Services and transition plan development
Public safety building construction gommumty Safety ‘ Q3 2026
ervices

‘ Proposed/Not yet funded ‘ On track O Issues or concerns . Project at risk . Complete

13




HOUSING
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PROJECTS & INITIATIVES.
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Project Department Status Status Details Completion

Construction Protocol Review Development Services . Complete Q12023

Priority Development Workshop—Housing Development Services . Complete Q2 2023

Rent Bank Program Information Brief Development Services . Complete Q2 2023
Integrated Parking Management Strategy: development

Parking Strategy and Updated Parking Bylaw Development Services O (s)z;%aeitlzoonzzl_aPna];Eirngoléjyrgcvs: E(;gf'g::fﬂ%?f;;iiﬁe'&_ Q12024
ed for Council's consideration in summer 2024

GIS Census Analysis Development Services . Complete Q32023

Tenant Relocation Policy Development Services . Complete Q4 2023

- . N . Engineering and Complete; Updated Bylaw approved by Council January

Subdivision & Development Bylaw Update (including sidewalk requirements) Public Works . 152024 Q12024

Prepare Zoning Bylaw Amendments to bring the Zoning Bylaw into conformance .

with recent amendments to the Local Government Act Development Services . Staff have started to prepare the necessary amendments | Q2 2024

Non-Market Housing Incentives & Targets Program Development Services ‘ To be reassessed by Council (extended from Q2) Q3 2024

Development Capacity Assessment Development Services . Portions of charter to Council in Q2 2024 for signoff Q4 2024

Development Process Improvements Development Services . Complete Q2 2024

Doctor Density Bonusing Development Services ‘ Eﬁéiéiig?;llzzszsissmem of new tools from the Province

Prepare new Housing Needs Assessment Development Services . Staff are waiting for further guidance from the province | Q4 2024

. Proposed/Not yet funded ‘ On track O Issues or concerns . Project at risk . Complete

COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2023-2026
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PROJECTS & INITIATIVES
GOOD GOVERNANCE & ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Project Department  Status Status Details Completion
: Corporate . . .
Council Code of Conduct Services Complete; annual review completed in Q1 2024 Q2 2023
Sign Bylaw Amendments SDgzr\(ﬁl:;S)ment . Complete Q3 2023
Staff report—-B.C. Growing Communities Fund Options Analysis SD;\(/eizlc:rSJment . Complete Q2 2023
. . e o . . Two surveys conducted in Q1 2024. Consultant to
Accessibility Plans—Accessibility British Columbia Act Compliance (draft to Corporate ‘ be engaged in Q2 2024 with draft Accessiblity Plan Q3 2024
Council) Services gy ,
anticipated in Q3 2024
N . Financial Services Complete; Council directed staff to provide Asset
Long Term Financial Planning Update — Infrastructure Asset Management Strategy and IT . Management Strategy update in 2024. Q4 2023
Asset Management Program—Recreation Inventory and Plan Development Parks and 20-year Capital PIan.and equipment inventory Q3 2024
Recreation complete. Next step is plan development.
Engineering and Consultant has begun sewer modeling and completed
Asset Management Program—Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Pu%lic Worgs ‘ pump station inspections. Project is on track for Q2 2024
completion by summer 2024.
Asset Management Program—Storm Sewer Master Plan Eﬂgiﬂe\f\ﬂﬁfnd ‘ New project added Q2 2024 Q2 2025
Asset Management Program—rFacilities Master Plan Eﬂgi&e\?&g&and ‘ New project added Q2 2024 Q12025

' Proposed/Not yet funded ‘ On track O Issues or concerns . Project at risk

15
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PROJECTS & INITIATIVES

STRONG RELATIONSHIPS & PARTNERSHIPS

Project Department Status Status Details Completion

HR and Communit ‘ Township staff have been in communication

Gorge Bridge Midden Site Signage : y with both Nations with regards to the status of | Q3 2024
Relations . o e

the current signage and are awaiting direction.

Community to Community Engagement (Songhees and Esquimalt First Nations) HR and Community ‘ Working with respective Councils on Ongoing
Relations engagement options and timelines

Develop opportunities for service agreements with Songhees and Esquimalt Nations il and Cnmumualy ‘ Depanimeis workmg in applicable areas (e.g. Ongoing
Relations archaeological requirements)

. Proposed/Not yet funded ‘ On track O Issues or concerns . Project at risk . Complete
16
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POTENTIAL FUTURE PROJECTS

DRAFT

These projects are forthcoming actions to help advance the existing council priorities.
They will be implemented as Projects near completion and as staff capacity allows. They are intended to initiate within the 2023-

2026 time period.

Project

Esquimalt Together Against Graffiti

Department

Engineering and Public Works

Council Priority

Engaged & Healthy Community

Update to Sidewalk Master Plan

Engineering and Public Works

Engaged & Healthy Community

Front Yard Deer Fencing Policy Development

Development Services

Engaged & Healthy Community

Saunders Street Municipal Park

Development Services

Engaged & Healthy Community

BC Transit Passes to Esquimalt Youth

Financial Services and IT

Engaged & Healthy Community

Municipal Lands Future Disposition

Development Services

Good Governance & Organizational Excellence

Inflow and Infiltration Bylaw

Engineering and Public Works

Good Governance & Organizational Excellence

Phase out Fuel Powered Landscape Equipment

Parks and Recreation

Climate Resilience & Environmental Stewardship

DADU Housing Simplify Program Development Services Housing
Development Handbook Development Services Housing
Major Zoning Bylaw Update Development Services Housing
Community Amenity Contributions Assessment Development Services Housing
Townhouse Zoning Incentive Program Development Services Housing
Omnibus Zoning Bylaw Amendments Development Services Housing
OCP Recalibration Development Services Housing
Zoning/OCP Reduce Hurdles for Commercial Space Development Development Services Housing
Policy Direction — COTW Discussion — Floor Area Ratio Deviations from OCP Development Services Housing
Development Cost Charges Bylaw Development Services Housing
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RELATED DOCUMENTS

Official Community Plan

2023 Financial Plan Bylaw

2022 Annual Report

Period reports

Active Transportation Network Plan

Climate Action Plan

vV V V V V V V

Art in Public Spaces Plan

Find these and other corporate documents on Esquimalt.ca or visit Esquimalt Municipal Hall at 1229 Esquimalt Rd.
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STAY IN TOUCH

Township of Esquimalt council meetings are
live- streamed as well as open to the public.

Subscribe to receive council agendas to your
inbox at esquimalt.ca/subscribe

FIND US ONLINE
EsquimaltBC

'] Township of Esquimalt
I EsquimaltBC

esquimalt.ca

IN PERSON
Esquimalt Municipal Hall

1229 Esquimalt Rd.
Esquimalt, B.C V9A 3P1

250-414-7100
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